

# **BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METRO PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT**

# Tennis/Pickleball Asphalt Overlay Project #2511

**Bid Document** 

**Specifications, Proposal and Contract Documents** 

May 2025

# **BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METRO PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT**

# Tennis/Pickleball Asphalt Overlay Project #2511

## **Bid Document**

## **Specifications, Proposal and Contract Documents**

May 2025

#### **District Officials:**

Executive Director: Dan Hamlin

Parks Board: Dawn Janow, Ken DeWitt, Tom Swolgaard, Jay Kinney, Tom Goodlin

#### Owner:

Bainbridge Island Metro Park & Recreation District,

11299 Arrow Point Dr NE

Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

#### **Project Manager:**

David Hary Parks Superintendent 206-351-4659 Email: <u>dharry@biparks.org</u>

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **DIVISION 0 – BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONTRACT FORMS**

#### SECTION

00 00 01	CONTACT LIST
00 01 00	INVITATION TO BID
00 10 00	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
00 30 00	BID PROPOSAL

#### TO BE SUBMITTED FOR BID

00 41 00	BID PROPOSAL FORM
00 43 43	CERTIFICATIONS OF WAGE FORM
00 61 00	BIDDER'S BOND
00 62 00STATEMENT OF PROP	OSED SUBCONTRACTORS AND ITEMS OF WORK

#### TO BE SUBMITTED UPON AWARD

00 52 00	AGREEMENT
00 61 13	FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND
00 61 23	

#### **DIVISION 1 – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS**

#### SECTION

01 01 00	GENERAL PROVISIONS
01 02 00	INSURANCE AND BONDS
01 03 00	TIME AND SCHEDULE
01 04 00	SPECIFICATIONS, DRAWINGS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS
01 05 00	NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE
01 26 00	CHANGES
01 29 00	PAYMENT AND COMPLETION
01 30 00	CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
01 31 00	TERMINATION
	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
01 81 00	PERFORMANCE

#### **DIVISION – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS & DRAWINGS**

#### SECTION

	SCOPE OF WORK
TECHNICAL	SPECIFICATIONS

#### **SECTION 00 01 00**

#### INVITATION TO BID

#### Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park & Recreation District SMALL WORKS ROSTER BID NOTICE Project: Tennis/Pickleball Courts Asphalt Overlay #2511

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 SUMMARY

The Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District will receive bids for the Tennis/Pickleball Courts Asphalt Overlay #2511at the Strawberry Hill Administrative Office, 7686 NE High School Road, Bainbridge Island, WA 98110 until 2 pm PST, June 3<sup>rd</sup>, 2025. Bids received after the appointed time set for receipt will not be accepted. All work completed for the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park District will be considered a public works project with prevailing wage documentation required. Prevailing wage rates for Kitsap County can be found here: <u>https://secure.lni.wa.gov/wagelookup/rates/journeylevel-rates</u>

Contact: David Harry, Project Manager, Dharry@biparks.org, 206-351-4659

Prospective bidders may access the public park sites for walkthroughs between dawn and dusk.

Bid documents may be viewed at <u>www.biparks.org/doing-business</u>

#### 1.02 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This scope of work outlines the requirements and activities necessary for installing a compacted 2 inch asphalt overlay over the existing asphalt courts located at Battle Point Park. The courts are approximately 120 feet by 108 feet. See Bid Specifications for details.
- Bids will be received by the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park & Recreation District, Bainbridge Island, WA, and are to be delivered to the Strawberry Hill Administrative Office, 7686 NE High School Road, Bainbridge Island, WA 98110 until 2 pm PST, June 3<sup>rd</sup>, 2025.
- C. No public bid opening is required. The successful bidder will be notified by email.

#### 1.03 BIDDING DOCUMENTS

A. All the bidding documents are on file in the office of the Owner. Bona fide bidders may obtain bidding documents, available May 6th, 2025, online at www.biparks.org/doing-business. Questions may be directed to Michelle Miller, Procurement Administrator, michellem@biparks.org. Please note that only small

works roster members are eligible to bid on this project.

- B. Copies:
  - 1. Bidders may obtain complete sets of the Bidding Documents from the issuing office designated in the Invitation to Bid for the fee designated. This will be considered a sale and will involve no refunding.
  - 2. Bidding Documents may be issued directly to Sub-Bidders.
  - 3. Bidders shall use complete sets of Bidding Documents in preparing Bids; neither the Owner nor the Architect assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.
  - 4. The Owner or the Architect, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above terms does so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and does not confer a license or grant for any other use.
- C. Interpretations or correction of bidding documents
  - 1. Bidders or Sub-bidders shall promptly notify the Architect of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or error, which they may discover upon examination of the Bidding Documents or of the site and local conditions.
  - 2. Bidders and Sub-bidders requiring clarification or interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a written request which shall reach the Architect at least seven days prior to the date for receipt of Bids.
  - 3. Any interpretation, correction, or change of the Bidding Documents will be made by Addendum. (See 3.4) Interpretations, corrections or changes of the Bidding Documents made in any other manner will not be binding, and Bidders shall not rely upon such interpretations, corrections, and changes.
- D. Substitutions
  - 1. The materials, products, and equipment described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required function, dimension, appearance, and quality to be met by any proposed substitution.
  - 2. No substitution will be considered prior to receipt of Bids unless a written request for approval has been received by the Architect at least ten days prior to the date for receipt of Bids. Each such request shall include the name of the material or equipment for which it is to be substituted and a complete description of the proposed substitute including drawings, cuts, performance and test data and any other information necessary for an evaluation. A statement setting forth any changes in other materials, equipment or other Work incorporated by the substitute shall be included.

The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitute is upon the proposer. The Architect /Owner's decision of approval or disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be final and binding.

- 3. If the Architect/Owner approves any proposed substitution prior to receipt of Bids, such approval will be set forth in an Addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon approvals made in any other manner. Should any proposed product substitution require any re-design work by the Architect/Owner or his consultants to accommodate the substitute product, costs for such redesign work shall be included in the Bid amount and shall be paid to the Architect at his usual rates/Owner at reasonable rates for the time expended in the required re-design work.
- 4. No substitutions will be considered after the Contract award unless specifically provided in the Contract Documents.
- 5. Substitution requests shall be made only on the Substitution Request Form found hereinafter. Fill in all data requested on the form and such form shall be received by the Architect at least ten days prior to the date for receiving bids.
- E. Addenda
  - 1. Addenda will be mailed or delivered to all who are known by the Architect/Owner to have received a complete set of Bidding Documents.
  - 2. Copies of Addenda will be made available for inspection wherever Bidding Documents are on file for that purpose.
  - 3. No Addenda will be issued later than four days prior to the date for receipt of Bids except an Addendum withdrawing the request for Bids or one, which includes postponements of the date for receipt of Bids
  - 4. Each Bidder shall ascertain prior to submitting his bid that he has received all Addenda issued, and he shall acknowledge their receipt in his Bid.
- F. Drawings, Project Manuals, and Coordination
  - 1. Prior to submitting a bid proposal for work being bid upon, examine and coordinate all Bidding Documents with all other contracts to be awarded separately from but in connection with the work being bid upon, so that Bidder is fully informed as to conditions affecting work under contract being bid upon. Failure to do so shall not be the cause of any additional costs for work caused therefrom.

#### 1.04 BIDDING PROCEDURE

A. Forms and Style of Bids

- 1. Bids shall be submitted on forms identical to the form included with the Bidding Documents.
- 2. All blanks on the bid form shall be filled in by computer, typewriter, or manually in ink.
- 3. Where so indicated by the makeup of the bid form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures, and in case of discrepancy between the two, the amount written in words shall govern.
- 4. Any interlineation, alteration, or erasure must be initialed by the signer of the Bid.
- 5. All requested Alternates shall be bid. If no change in the Base Bid is required, enter "No Change".
- 6. Where two or more Bids for Designated portions of the Work have been requested, the Bidder may, without forfeiture of his bid security, state his refusal to accept award of less than the combination of Bids he so stipulates. The Bidder shall make no additional stipulations on the bid form nor qualify his Bid in any other manner.
- 7. The prices in the Bid shall include all applicable federal, state, and local taxes for the job site, Bainbridge Island, Kitsap County, Washington.
- 8. Each copy of the Bid shall include the legal name of the Bidder and a statement that the Bidder is a sole proprietor, a partnership, a corporation, or some other legal entity. Each proposal signature sheet shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the Bidder to a contract. A bid by a corporation shall further give the state of incorporation and have the corporate seal, if there is one, affixed. A bid submitted by an agent shall have a current power of attorney attached certifying the agent's authority to bind the Bidder.

#### B. Bid Security

1. Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check for 5% of the total maximum amount of the bid, made payable to the Owner, or a bid bond in the form furnished by the Owner for 5% of the total maximum amount of the bid, as a guarantee that the bidder will promptly execute a valid contract with the Owner in accordance with the bidding documents. If a bid bond is used, the 5% may be shown in dollars and cents or the form may be filled in by inserting therein, in lieu of dollars of cents, "5% of the amount of the accompanying proposal." Bonds must be satisfactory to the Owner. Check or bid bond of the successful bidder will be returned immediately upon execution of contract in acceptance of performance and payment bond. All other checks will be returned upon execution of the contract. The Bidder acknowledges that the Owner will suffer substantial damages if Bidder refuses to enter the Contract

or furnish the required bonds but that such damages are difficult to determine with precision. If the Bidder refuses to enter into such Contract or fails to furnish such bonds if required (all within the required time), then the Owner may elect to retain and forfeit the good security or Bid Bond as liquidated damages (and not a penalty) or collect actual damages from the Bidder.

- 2. The surety bond shall be written on the Bid Bond form supplied with the Bidding documents, and the attorney-in-fact who executes the bond on behalf of the surety shall affix to the bond a certified and current copy of his power of attorney.
- 3. The Owner will have the right to retain the bid security of Bidders to whom an award is being considered until either (a) the Contract has been executed and bonds, if required, have been furnished, or (b) the specified time has elapsed so that Bids may be withdrawn, or (c) all Bids have been rejected.
- C. Subcontractors
  - When the Owner's estimate of the project cost exceeds \$1,000,000 1. (including additive alternates), the bidder is required to list the names of the subcontractors with whom the bidder, if awarded the contract, will subcontract for performance of the work of: HVAC (heating, ventilation, and air conditioning); plumbing as described in chapter 18.106 RCW; and electrical as described in chapter 19.28 RCW, or to name itself for the work. The prime contract bidder shall not list more than one subcontractor for each category of work identified, unless subcontractors vary with bid alternates, in which case the prime contract bidder must indicate which subcontractor will be used for which alternate. Failure of the prime contract bidder to submit as part of the bid the names of such subcontractors or to name itself to perform such work or the naming of two or more subcontractors to perform the same work shall render the prime contract bidder's bid nonresponsive and, therefore, void. If the bidder does not intend to award any subcontracts for the base bid and alternates, the bidder shall so indicate on their subcontractor list. (Reference RCW 39.30.060)
  - 2. Failure to meet this requirement shall render the bidder's bid non-responsive and, therefore, void.
  - 3. The Bidder's list of subcontractors shall be submitted on the "Subcontractor Listing" form included with the bid documents.
  - 4. The successful Bidder shall not be permitted to change Subcontractors named on the Subcontractor Listing without the prior written consent of the Owner and as stipulated in the General Conditions.
- D. Submission of Bids

- 1. All copies of the Bid, the bid security, if any, and any other documents required to be submitted with the Bid shall be addressed to the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District and shall be identified with the Project name, the Bidder's name, and address and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Work for which the Bid submitted.
- 2. Bids shall be deposited at the designated location prior to the time and date for receipt of Bids indicated in the Invitation to Bid, or any extension thereof made by Addendum. Bids received after the time and date for receipt of Bids will be returned unopened. Bids received after the submittal deadline or at the wrong location will be rejected as non-responsive.
- 3. All Bids shall be logged by the Owner upon receipt. The Bidder shall assume responsibility that the Bid be logged and for timely delivery at the location designated for receipt of Bids. A Bidder mailing its Bid bears the risk of non-receipt and the risk of failure to log or inaccurate logging.
- 4. Oral, telephonic Bids are invalid and will not receive consideration.
- E. Modification or Withdrawal of Bid
  - 1. A Bid may not be modified, withdrawn, or canceled by the Bidder during the stipulated time period following the time and date designated for the receipt of Bids, and each Bidder so agrees in submitting his Bid.
  - 2. Prior to the time and date designated for receipt of Bids, any Bid submitted may be modified or withdrawn by written notice to the Owner at the place designated for receipt of Bids. Such notice shall be in writing over the signature of the Bidder, written confirmation over the signature of the Bidder shall be mailed and postmarked on or before the date and time set for receipt of Bids, and it shall be so worded as not to reveal the amount of the original Bid.
  - 3. Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the time designated for receipt of Bids if they conform with these Instructions to Bidders.
  - 4. Bid security shall be in an amount sufficient for the Bid as modified or resubmitted.

#### 1.05 PRE-BID INSPECTION OF PROJECT SITE

A. Contractors are responsible for conducting their own site inspection prior to bidding to determine the logistics of performing the work under the contract.

#### 1.06 CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

A. Opening of Bids

- 1. An abstract of the Base Bids and Alternate Bids, if any, will be made available to Bidders.
- B. Rejection of Bids
  - 1. The Owner shall have the right to reject any or all Bids or any items of the Bid and to reject a Bid not accompanied by any required Bid security or by other data required by the Bidding Documents, or to reject a Bid, which is in any way incomplete or irregular. Any or all bids may be rejected for good cause.
  - 2. If Owner determines that an apparent low bidder is not responsible, Owner will provide its reasons for the determination in writing to the bidder. The bidder may appeal the determination by within three (3) days of its receipt of Owner's determination presenting additional information to Owner. If bidder provides this additional information, Owner will provide a final and binding written determination to the bidder.
- C. Contract Award
  - 1. It is the intent of the Owner to award a Contract to the lowest responsible Bidder provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and does not exceed the funds available. The Owner shall have the right to waive any informality, irregularity, or technical defect in any Bid or Bids received and to accept the Bid or Bids, which, in its judgment, is in its best interests. In selecting the most responsible Bidder, consideration will be given to financial standing and the general competency of the Bidder for the performance of the work covered by the proposal.
  - 2. The Owner shall have the right to accept Alternates in any order or combination, unless otherwise specifically provided in Article 9, and to determine the lowest and best Bidder on the basis of the sum of the Base Bid and the Alternates accepted, together with considerations of responsibility and compliance.
  - 3. No bidder may withdraw his/her bid after the hour set for the opening of bids or before the award of the contract.
  - 4. Proposals must be made on the Bidder's Proposal Form.
  - 5. Bids will only be accepted by postal mail or in person. No email bids shall be accepted.

#### 1.07 POST BID INFORMATION

- A. Submittals
  - 1. The bidder shall, within seven days of notification of selection for the award

of a Contract for the Work, submit the following information to the Architect/Owner:

- a. A designation of the Work to be performed by the Bidder with his own forces;
- b. The names of the suppliers of items, systems, materials and equipment proposed for the Work;
- c. A list of names of the Subcontractors or other persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design) proposed for the principal portions of the Work.
- 2. The Bidder will be required to establish to the satisfaction of the Architect and the Owner the reliability and responsibility of the persons or entities proposed to furnish and perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents
- 3. Prior to the award of the Contract, the Architect/Owner will notify the Bidder in writing if either the Owner or the Architect, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity. If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity, the Bidder may, at his option, (1) withdraw his Bid, or (2) submit an acceptable substitute person or entity with an adjustment in his bid price to cover the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution. The Owner may, at his discretion, accept the adjusted bid price or he may disqualify the Bidder. In the event of either withdrawal or disqualification under this Subparagraph, bid security will not be forfeited, notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 1.05.E.1.
- 4. Persons and entities proposed by the Bidder and to whom the Owner has, and the Architect have made no reasonable objection under the provisions of Subparagraph 6.2.3 must be used on the Work for which they were proposed and shall not be changed except with the written consent of the Owner and the Architect.

#### 1.08 FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AND LABROR AND MATERIAL BOND

- A. Bond Requirements
  - 1. Prior to execution of the Contract, the Bidder shall furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obligations arising thereunder in such form and amount as the Owner may prescribe. Bonds may be secured through the Bidder's usual sources from a company licensed to do business in Washington State and excellently rated. The cost of such bonds shall be included in the Bid.
- B. Time of Delivery and Form of Bonds

- 1. The bidder shall deliver the required bonds to the Owner not later than the date of execution of the Contract, or if the Work is to be commenced prior thereto in response to a letter of intent, the Bidder shall, prior to commencement of the Work, submit evidence satisfactory to the Owner that such bonds will be furnished.
- 2. The bonds shall be written on Faithful Performance Bond and Labor and Material Payment Bond forms provided by the Owner.
- 3. The Bidder shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of his power of attorney.

#### 1.09 AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

- A. Form to be used
  - 1. Unless otherwise required in the Bidding Documents, the Agreement for the Work will be written on the attached "Contract for Construction Services".
- B. Execution of Agreement
  - 1. A Bidder whose proposal is accepted shall sign the written Agreement between Owner and Contractor within ten (10) days from the date of mailing of a Notice from Owner to Bidder of acceptance of his proposal. Failure to so execute the Agreement shall result in forfeiture of the Bidder's bond or certified check.

#### 1.10 SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTIONS

#### 1.11 DEFINITIONS

- A. Bidding Documents include the Bid Notice, Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, General Conditions for Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District Public Works Projects, Supplemental Conditions to the General Conditions for Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District Public Works Projects, Special Provisions if applicable, Memorandum to All Potential Bidders, Bidder's Proposal and Proposal Signature Sheet, Subcontractor Listing Form if project is estimated at \$1,000,000 or more, Bidder's Bond, Sample Faithful Performance and Payment Bond, Sample Retainage Bond, Sample Contract for Construction Services, Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates and Benefit Code Key, Davis-Bacon Wage Determinations if project has Federal Funding, Technical Specifications and List of Drawings listed in the Table of Contents, Drawings if applicable, and any addenda issued prior to receipt of bids.
- B. The Contract Documents proposed for the work consist of the Contract for Construction Services, the conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and any other conditions), applicable Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates and

Benefit Code Key, applicable Davis Bacon Wage Determinations if project has Federal Funding, the Drawings and Specifications, and all addenda issued prior to, and all modifications issued after execution of the Contract

- C. All definitions set forth in the General Conditions for Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District Public Works Projects, and in other Contract Documents are applicable to the Bidding Documents.
- D. Addenda are written, or graphic instruments issued by the Architect prior to the execution of the Contract, which modify or interpret the Bidding Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, or corrections
- E. Bid is a complete and properly signed proposal to do the Work or designated portion thereof for the sums stipulated therein, submitted in accordance with the Bidding Documents.
- F. The Base Bid is the sum stated in the Bid for which the Bidder offers to perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents as the base, to which work may be added or from which work may be deleted for sums stated in Alternate Bids.
- G. An Alternate Bid (or Alternate) is an amount stated in the Bid to be added to or deducted from the amount of the Base Bid if the corresponding change in the Work, as described in the Bidding Documents, is accepted.
- H. A Unit Price is an amount stated in the Bid as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services as described in the Bidding Documents or in the proposed Contract Documents.
- I. A Bidder is a person or entity who submits a Bid
- J. A Sub-bidder is a person or entity who submits a bid to a Bidder for materials or labor for a portion of the Work.

#### 1.12 BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

- A. Each Bidder by making his Bid represents that:
  - 1. He has read and understands the Bidding Documents and his Bid is made in accordance therewith.
  - 2. He has visited the site, familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated his observations with the proposed Contract Documents' requirements.
  - 3. His Bid is based upon the materials, systems, and equipment required by the Bidding Documents without exception.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 00 10 00**

#### **INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### **Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park & Recreation District**

#### MEMORANDUM

TO:	All Potential Bidders on the Small Works Roster
FROM:	Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District
SUBJECT:	District Wide Court Resurfacing Project #2505

# Bids for this project are due no later than 2 PM PST on Tuesday, June 3rd, 2025, mailed or dropped off at the Strawberry Hill Administrative Office, 7686 NE High School Road, Bainbridge Island, WA 98110.

At the time of the bidding, please submit the following forms, which are attached. Please do not submit your full specification booklet. Failure to properly complete or submit ALL forms will render your bid non-responsive.

- o Bid Proposal Form
- Certifications of Wage Form
- o Bidders Bond
- Statement of Proposed Subcontractors and Items of Work

The following shall be submitted upon Notice of Intent to Award

- W-9
- Insurance
- Agreement
- Faithful Performance and Payment Bond
- Retainage Bond (if applicable)

If you have any questions, please contact the Procurement Administrator, Michelle Miller, <u>michellem@biparks.org</u>

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

#### PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### SECTION 00 30 00

#### **BID PROPOSAL**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

# 1.01ToBainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District7686 NE High School RoadBainbridge Island, WA 98110

- A. The undersigned Bidder declares that he has read and fully understands the Notice inviting bids and each and every other Contract Document referred to therein and agrees to all of the terms, conditions and provisions contained therein; that he has examined the site of the work and has made the investigations and formed the estimates as to all conditions and contingencies referred to in and required by the Contract Documents, and he proposes and agrees that if his bid as submitted in the Proposal be accepted, he will contract in the form provided to perform all of the work and in the manner required by the Contract Documents and to complete the same within the time stipulated; that he will accept in full payment therefor the prices named herein. Said prices are to include and cover the furnishing of all materials, the performing of all labor requisite or proper, supervision, overhead, profit, taxes (excluding State sales tax), and the providing of all necessary machinery, tools, appurtenances, equipment and other means required to fully complete this contract, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Specifications.
- B. Bidder further agrees that he will sign the contract in accordance with the Proposal as accepted and furnish the required bonds within ten (10) days from date of mailing of said notice of acceptance to him at his address as given below or within such additional time as may be allowed by the Architect, but in any event within twenty (20) days after said mailing; upon his failure or refusal to do so within said time, the certified or cashier's check or bidder's bond, accompanying his bid, and the money payable thereon, shall be forfeited to and become the property of the owner as liquidated damages (and not a penalty) for such failure or refusal, provided, that if said bidder shall execute the contract and furnish the required bonds within the time aforesaid, his certified or cashier's check, if furnished, shall be returned to him within three (3) days thereafter, and the bid bond, if furnished, shall become void.
- C. Bidder agrees that his Proposal shall remain open and not withdrawn for a period of not less than sixty (60) days from the date of opening bids.
- D. No extra will be allowed if an increase becomes necessary due to an error or omission of contractor or any subcontractor.
- E. Written "Changes in Work" will be issued formalizing any authorized changes.

- F. Owner will evaluate bids to determine the lowest Total Price offered by responsive, responsible bidder. The Owner reserves the right to reject a bid in the event it is determined that any price for any bid item is unreasonable, unbalanced, or otherwise not in the best interest of Owner. A contract will be awarded, if at all, based on the lowest Total Price of responsive, responsible bidder.
- G. The owner reserves the right, but without obligation, to weigh the irregularities and informalities. The Owner further reserves the right to reject any portion of any bid, and/or to reject all bids. Construction shall be completed within 180 calendar days from the written notice to proceed. If not completed by such date, the Contractor shall be liable to the District for damages. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees to abide by all provisions of the General Conditions Article 3.07, Damages for Failure to Achieve Timely Completion. The Contractor further agrees to pay to the Owner as liquidated damages (and not a penalty) the sum of \$500.00 for each calendar day that he shall be in default after the time of completion specified herein.
- H. Receipt of addenda numbered is hereby acknowledged and all costs of the work therefore have been included in the Proposal.
- I. Base Bid Schedule see next page
- J. Attached forms: Bidder's Bond or Certified/Cashier's Check

Bids are due no later than 2 PM PST on Tuesday, June 3rd, 2025 Mailed or dropped off at the Strawberry Hill Administration Office 7686 NE High School Road, Bainbridge Island, WA 98110

#### **BID PROPOSAL FORM**

The undersigned hereby certifies that they have examined the locations and constructions details of work outlined in the Plans and Specifications for: **TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS ASPHALT OVERLAY #2511** Bainbridge Island in Kitsap County, WA, and has read and thoroughly understands the plans, specifications, and contract governing the work included in this improvement, and the method by which payment will be made for said work, and hereby propose to undertake and compete the work included in this improvement in accordance with the said plans, specifications, and contract and at the following schedule of rates and prices.

NOTE: Unit prices and total prices for all items, all extensions, and total amount of bid must be shown. Show prices and legible figures (not words) written in ink or typed.

#### **Base Bid Schedule**

Option	BID ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QTY	SUM TOTAL
<b>2 Inch Asphalt Overlay:</b> Crack fill and install a compacted 2-inch-thick asphalt overlay per project scope and specsLS1		1		
	BASE	E BID SUE	STOTAL	\$
	WASHINGTON STATE S	ALES TAX	(9.2%)	\$
	GF	RAND TOT	AL BID	\$

#### **Alternative A1 Schedule**

Option	BID ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QTY	SUM TOTAL
Alt 1	2 Inch Asphalt Overlay with Stone Screenings Base: Crack fill and install a 2- inch compacted stone screenings base and a compacted 2-inch-thick asphalt overlay per project scope and specs	LS	1	
	ALTERNAT	IVE 1 SUE	BTOTAL	\$
	WASHINGTON STATE S	ALES TAX	(9.2%)	\$
	GF	AND TOT	AL BID	\$

**Evaluation of Bids:** The evaluation of bids and determination of the lowest responsive and responsible bid will be based on Base Bid Subtotal in the Base Bid Schedule above plus any or alternatives that meet the operational priorities and available funding for this project.

Addenda: Bidder acknowledges review of all Addenda through No. \_\_\_\_\_

**Bidding Company** 

Date

#### **SECTION 00 43 43**

#### **CERTIFICATIONS OF WAGE FORM**

The bidder hereby certifies that, within the three-year period immediately preceding the bid solicitation date May 6, 2025, the bidder is not a "willful" violator, as defined in RCW 49.48.082, of any provision of chapters 49.46, 49.48, or 49.52 RCW, as determined by a final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the Department of Labor and Industries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the foregoing is true and correct.

Bidder's Business N	Name		
Signature of Author	ized Official*		
Printed Name			
Title			
Date	City		State or country
Check One: Sole Proprietorship State of Incorporatic formed:			Corporation 🗆 where business entity was
lf a co-partnership, ٤	give firm name	under which busi	ness is transacted:
	other corporate	officer accompani	orate name by the president or ed by evidence of authority to sign). ner.

#### SECTION 00 00 01

#### CONTACT LIST

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

Project Team	Contact	Phone/e-mail
<b>Owner Project Manager</b> Parks Superintendent Bainbridge Island Metro Park & Recr 11299 Arrow Point Dr NE Bainbridge Island, WA, 98110	David Harry eation District	(206) 351-4659
<b>Owner Administration</b> Procurement Administrator Bainbridge Island Metro Park & Recr 7686 NE High School Rd Bainbridge Island, WA, 98110		(206) 825-9337
PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)		
PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)		
	END OF SECTION	

#### **SECTION 00 52 00**

#### AGREEMENT

#### AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

This agreement is entered into the date below written between the BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METROPOLITAN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT, a Washington special purpose district (the "District"), and \_\_\_\_\_\_, referred to as "*Contractor*" for the project **TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS ASPHALT OVERLAY PROJECT #2511.** 

- 1) Services Rendered by *Contractor*: *Contractor* shall provide the professional services as defined in this Agreement and as necessary to accomplish the Scope of the Services. *Contractor* shall furnish all services, labor and related equipment to conduct and complete the work, except as specifically noted otherwise in this agreement.
- 2) Terms of Payment:
- A) Payment. The District shall pay *Contractor* for cost reimbursable services: (check one)
  (\_) Hourly, plus actual expenses, in accordance with Attachment A, but not more than a total of \_\_\_\_\_;
  ( ) Fixed Sum: a total amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_ (see attachment A)
  ( ) Other: \_\_\_\_\_.
- B) Invoicing. Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for services performed in a previous calendar month in a format acceptable to the District. Each project and each task with a project shall be the subject of a separate invoice. Contractor shall maintain time and expense records according to industry standards and provide them to the District upon request.
- C) Payments to Contractor. All invoices shall be paid by mailing a check within 60 days of receipt of a proper invoice and W-9 form. Checks will be mailed to address indicated on W-9 submitted by Contractor.
- D) Final Payment. Final payment of any balances will be made upon completion of the Scope of Service (See Attachment A) and receipt of all deliverables and all project- related documents and data that are required under this Agreement.
- E) Satisfaction of Scope of Services. If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of this Agreement, *Contractor* shall timely correct or modify the work to comply with this Agreement. The District may withhold payment for such work until it meets the requirements of the Agreement. Satisfaction of services will be the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by professional engineers and consultants performing the same or similar services.
- 3) Discrimination and Compliance with Laws:

A) Contractor agrees not to discriminate against any employee or any other person in the performance of the Agreement because of race, creed, color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, veteran's status, disability or other circumstances prohibited under federal state or local laws, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.
B) Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under the Agreement. Violation of Paragraph 3 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of the District.

- 4) Term and Termination of Agreement:
  - A) This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue in full force until \_\_\_\_\_ unless sooner terminated by either party pursuant to Section 4(B) below.
  - B) This Agreement may be terminated by either party without cause upon 30-days written notice, in which event all finished or unfinished documents, reports, data or other material or work of pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the District, and *Contractor* shall be entitled to just equitable compensation at the rate set forth in Paragraph 2 for any satisfactory work completed prior to the date of termination.
- 5) Intellectual Property:
  - A) Any and all intellectual property developed in the course of the Scope of Services is a direct result of the Agreement whose rights are controlled by the District.
  - B) Ownership of intellectual property developed solely as a result of the Agreement is owned by the District, this pertains to any digitized material, technical data, software, reports and permits.
- 6) General Administration:
  - A) District Authorization and its Designee. The Director of the District, or his designee, shall be the District's representative and shall oversee and approve all services to be performed, coordinate all communications and review and approve all invoices under this Agreement.
  - B) Independent Contractor. Contractor's relationship with District is that of an independent contractor.\_Contractor is free to engage in other independent contracting activities, provided that such activities do not conflict with or interfere with\_Contractor's duties hereunder. \_Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed. \_Contractor is in business for itself and is not economically dependent on District. Nothing in this Agreement, or in the business dealings or relationship between the parties, shall be construed to create the relationship of employee and employer, partners or joint ventures. \_Contractor warrants to District that it will pay all applicable taxes and withholdings, and will make all filings with governmental entities, as required as a result of execution of this Agreement and compensation received by it hereunder. \_\_Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold District harmless from

and against any and all claims, actions, penalties, fees, assessments, liabilities and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of or relating in way whatsoever to \_\_\_\_Contractor's breach of the warranty in this Section 6.B

- C) Lower Tier Subcontracts. *Contractor* shall not sublet or assign any of the work covered by the Agreement, except with the prior written approval of the District and in strict compliance with the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement. *Contractor* will bind all Lower Tier Subconsultants to the Provisions of this Agreement.
- D) No Additional Relationship or Burden Implied. Neither this Agreement nor any Lower Tier subcontract will create any contractual relationship between any Lower Tier Subconsultant and the District nor any liability onto the District from any Lower Tier Subconsultant.
- E) Access to and Retention of Records. Contractor will maintain project and accounting records for required six (6) year WA State retention period in accordance with RCW 40.14.070, and make them available for examination by the District upon request. Records will also be made available to the District to fulfill any public record request received by the District. (See Section 9: Public Records Act). If Contractor does not want to retain the project and accounting records for the six (6) year length of time stipulated in the WA State Retention Schedule, Contractor will turn the records over to the District who will assume responsibility for retaining them for the required length of time.
- F) Notice of Delay. The time schedule for the performance of services set forth under this Agreement is based on *Contractor's* anticipation of the orderly and continuous progress of the project. If *Contractor* is delayed in the performance of services by conditions that are beyond its control, *Contractor* shall notify the District in writing of the cause of the delay and the amount of the delay anticipated. Such notice shall be delivered to the District within five (5) days of the time *Contractor* is aware of the delay.
- G) Permits, Licenses and Fees: *Owner* will obtain and pay for all permits and licenses required by law that are associated with *Contractor's* performance of the Scope of Services and will give all necessary notices.
- H) The GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METROPOLITAN PARK AND RECREATION DISTRICT PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS ("General Conditions") are incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth herein. If there is a conflict between this Agreement and the General Conditions, the General Conditions control.
- 7) Insurance: *Contractor* will maintain throughout this Agreement the following insurance and will submit certificates verifying such to the District:
  - A) Worker's compensation insurance as required by Washington State.
  - B) Comprehensive automobile and vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and damages to property of others arising from the use of motor

vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and owned, or non-owned or hired vehicles, with \$2,000,000 combined single limits.

- C) Comprehensive general liability insurance covering claims for injuries arising out of claims for injuries arising out of any negligent act or omission of Contractor or of any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors with \$2,000,000 per occurrence/\$4,000,000 aggregate.
- D) All insurance certificates will state that the insurance carrier will give the District thirty (30) days' notice of any cancelation of the policies. Excepting the Worker's Compensation Insurance secured by the *Contractor*, the District will be named on all policies as an additional insured. The *Contractor* shall furnish the District with verification of insurance and endorsements required by the agreement. The District reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time.
- 8) Hold Harmless:

The Contractor shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless District, its officers, employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments, awards of damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees)arising out of or in any way resulting from (i) the negligent acts or omissions, or intentional misconduct, of Contractor, its officers, employees and agents in performing this Agreement and/or (ii) material breach of this Agreement by Contractor.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to <u>RCW</u> <u>4.24.115</u>, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor and the District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Contractor's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Contractor's negligence. It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Contractor's waiver of immunity under <u>Industrial Insurance</u>, <u>Title 51 RCW</u>, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.

The District shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless Contractor, its officers, employees and agents from any and all costs, claims, judgments and awards of damages, and expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of or in any way resulting from (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions, or intentional misconduct, of the District, its officers, employees or agents in performing this Agreement and/or (ii) material breach of this Agreement by the District. The provisions of this Section 8 shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

- 9) Public Records Act
  - A) This Agreement and all public records associated with this Agreement shall be available for inspection and copying by the public where required by the Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW (the "Act"). To the extent that public records then in the custody of the Contractor are needed for the Park District to respond to a request under the Act, as determined by the Park District, the Contractor agrees to make them promptly available to the Park District.

- B) If the Contractor considers any portion of any record provided to the Park District under this Agreement, whether in electronic or hard copy form, to be protected from disclosure under law, the Contractor shall clearly identify any specific information that it claims to be confidential or proprietary. If the Park District receives a request under the Act to inspect or copy the information so identified by the Contractor and the Park District determines that release of the information is required by the Act or otherwise appropriate, the Park District's sole obligations shall be to notify the Contractor (a) of the request and (b) of the date that such information will be released to the requester unless the Contractor obtains a court order to enjoin that disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56.540. If the Contractor fails to timely obtain a court order enjoining disclosure, the Park District will release the requested information on the date specified.
- C) The Park District has, and by this section assumes, no obligation on behalf of the Contractor to claim any exemption from disclosure under the Act. The Park District shall not be liable to the Contractor for releasing records not clearly identified by the Contractor as confidential or proprietary. The Park District shall not be liable to the Contractor for any records that the Park District releases in compliance with this section or in compliance with an order of a court of competent jurisdiction.
- 10) General Provisions:
  - A) Waivers. No waiver by either party of any default by the other party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement will operate as, or be construed as, a waiver of any future default, whether like or different in character.
  - B) Force Majure. Neither party to this Agreement will be liable to the other party for delays in performing the Scope of Services, or for the direct or indirect costs resulting from such delays, that may result from labor strikes, riots, war, acts of governmental catastrophe, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.
  - C) Authorization to Proceed. Execution of the Agreement by the District will be authorization for *Contractor* to proceed with the Scope of Services, unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement.
  - D) No Third- Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than *Contractor* and the District and has no third-party beneficiaries.

E) Dispute Resolution. In the event of a dispute between the parties arising under or relating in any way whatsoever to this Agreement, the parties shall attempt to resolve it through good faith negotiation. If the dispute is not resolved through such negotiation, the parties shall attempt to resolve it through mediation in Kitsap County, Washington, with a neutral, third-party mediator mutually agreed upon by the parties, with the costs of mediation shared equally by the parties. If the dispute is not resolved through mediation, then upon written demand by one of the parties it shall be referred to an arbitrator mutually agreed upon by the parties. The arbitration process shall be conducted in accordance with RCW 7.04A, except as modified herein. The arbitration

hearing shall be held in Kitsap County, Washington. All remedies, legal and equitable, available in court shall also be available in arbitration. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding, and judgment may be entered thereon in any court of competent jurisdiction. In any dispute arising out of this Agreement, including arbitration, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorney fees and costs from the other party. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington, without regard to conflict of law principles thereof. Venue of any dispute shall lie exclusively in Kitsap County.

- F) <u>Contractor</u> may not assign its rights or obligations arising under this Agreement without the prior written consent of District.
- G) If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement are severable, and the unenforceability of any single provision herein shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement.
- H) Those provisions of this Agreement that have or could have effect after termination of this Agreement, which include, without limitation, dispute resolution and indemnification provisions, shall survive termination of this Agreement and be fully applicable and enforceable thereafter.

I) This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties, supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, and may be changed only by written amendment executed by both parties. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and facsimile and pdf signatures shall be deemed the equivalent of original signatures for all purposes.

11) Attachments and Schedules:

The following attachments and schedules are hereby made a part of this Agreement:

Attachment A – Complete Bid Package & Bid Submitted

Accepted for the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District

Date:
Title:
Date:
Title: END OF SECTION

#### **SECTION 00 61 00**

#### **BIDDER'S BOND**

(Not necessary when certified or cashier's check of not less than 5% of total bid amount accompanies bid)

We, the undersigned principal and surety, and our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, are jointly and severally held and firmly bound to the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District of Bainbridge Island, Washington, a municipal corporation ["DISTRICT"], in the principal sum

of

(\$	), to be paid and forfeited to the District if the bid of the undersigned
principal for	under the project
entitled	shall be accepted and the
proposed Contract a	warded to said principal, and said principal shall fail or refuse to
execute the Agreeme	nt in accordance with said bid as accepted and to furnish the bonds
required in connection	on therewith within the time and form required. Otherwise, this
obligation to be void.	

WITNESS our hands this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 2025.

Principal By:		
Title		

Surety

SEAL By:

Attorney-in-Fact

A notarial certificate of attorney-in-fact and seal of surety must be attached. If executed by an attorney-in-fact, proof of current authority must be attached.

#### SECTION 00 61 13

#### FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT

That we,		, as Principal, and
	:	, as Surety, are held and firmly
bound to the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District of Bainbridge		
Island, Washington, a municipal corporation ["DISTRICT"] in the sum of		
	Dollars (\$	), lawful money of the
United States of America, for the payme	ent of which sum, wel	ll and truly to be made, we bind
ourselves, our heirs, executors, adminis	strators, successors a	and assigns, jointly and
severally, by these present.		

The condition of the above obligation is such that, whereas said Principal has been awarded and is about to enter into the annexed contract, with the DISTRICT

\_\_\_\_\_\_ and to which reference is hereby made for all particulars, and is required by DISTRICT to give this bond in connection with the execution of said contract;

NOW THEREFORE, if said Principal as Contractor under said contract fails to perform all of the covenants, terms, conditions and stipulations of said contract on his or its part to be done and performed at the times and in the manner specified therein, or if said Principal shall fail to pay all of his subcontractors, suppliers, material men, and laborers on said work, or if all materials used and workmanship employed in the performance of the contract shall not be free from defects, or if any defects should appear therein with a period of one year from the date of acceptance by DISTRICT of the work under the contract and the said Principal and Contractor shall fail to repair, replace and correct such defects at his or its own expense and to the satisfaction of the Owner within thirty (30) days after notice thereof by DISTRICT, said Principal and Surety will pay the DISTRICT the amount of all its loss, cost, expense, damages and liability on account of any and all of the foregoing, not exceeding, however, the sum set forth above, and in case suit is brought upon this bond said Surety shall also pay a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

The Said Principal and Surety agree that any change, extension of time, alterations or additions to said contract or work or materials required thereunder shall not in any manner release either the Principal or the Surety from the obligations of this bond; and said Surety hereby waives notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or additions to said contact or performance required thereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have executed this instrument in duplicate this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_ 2025.

TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS ASPHALT OVERLAY #2511 BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METRO PARK & REC DISTRICT MAY 6, 2025 00 61 13- 1 FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

Surety	Principal
By:	Ву:
Its	Its

#### **SECTION 00 61 23**

#### **RETAINAGE BOND**

#### KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT

That we, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, as Principal, and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, as Surety, are jointly and severally held and firmly bound to the Bainbridge Island Metropolitan Park and Recreation District, Washington, a municipal corporation ["DISTRICT"] and are similarly held and bound unto the beneficiaries of the trust fund created by RCW 60.28 as their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, in the penal sum of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ Dollars (\$\_\_\_\_\_\_\_), lawful money of the United States of America, plus 5% of any increase in the contract amount that have occurred or may occur due to change orders, increases in the quantities or the addition of any new item of work.

WHEREAS, on the \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2025 , the said Principal executed Contract No.\_\_\_\_\_ , with the DISTRICT for \_\_\_\_\_\_.

WHEREAS, said contract and RCW 60.28 requires the DISTRICT to withhold from the Principal the sum of 5% of monies earned by the Contractor on estimates during the progress of construction, hereinafter referred to as earned retained funds.

AND NOW WHEREAS, Principal has requested that the DISTRICT not retain any future earned retained funds and that they release all of a portion of the current amount of earned retained funds as allowed under RCW 60.28.

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if the Principal shall use the earned retained funds which will not be retained or shall use such funds which are now being released, for the trust fund purposes of RCW 60.28, then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have caused these presents to be duly signed and sealed this\_\_\_\_\_\_ day of\_\_\_\_\_\_, 2025.

Surety	Principal
By:	Ву:
Its	lts

#### **SECTION 00 62 00**

#### STATEMENT OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS AND ITEMS OF WORK

#### Print Contractors Name

Each Bidder shall submit with the Bid, or within one (1) hour after the time for submittal of sealed Bids, the names of all Subcontractors whose subcontract will amount to 10% or more of the total Bid. The list shall contain the name of the Subcontractor, the category of work to be performed by the Subcontractor, and the percentage of the total Bid price which is comprised of the Subcontractor's work.

Work to be Performed	% of Bid	Name and Phone Number of Subcontractor

#### SECTION 01 01 00

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 **DEFINITIONS**

- A. "Application for Payment" means a written request submitted by Contractor to A/E for payment of Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and approved Schedule of Values, supported by such substantiating data as Owner or A/E may require.
- B. "Architect," "Engineer," or "A/E" means a person or entity lawfully entitled to practice architecture or engineering, representing Owner within the limits of its delegated authority.
- C. "Change Order" means a written instrument signed by Owner and Contractor stating their agreement upon all of the following: (1) a change in the Work; (2) the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any, and (3) the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.
- D. "Claim" means Contractor's exclusive remedy for resolving disputes with Owner regarding the terms of a Change Order or a request for equitable adjustment, as more fully set forth in part 8.
- E. "Contract Award Amount" is the sum of the Base Bid and any accepted Alternates.
- F. "Contract Documents" means the Advertisement for Bids, Instructions for Bidders, completed Form of Proposal, General Conditions, Modifications to the General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions, Public Works Contract, other Special Forms, Drawings and Specifications, and all addenda and modifications thereof.
- G. "Contract Sum" is the total amount payable by Owner to Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, including all taxes imposed by law and properly chargeable to the Work
- H. "Contract Time" is the number of calendar days allotted in the Contract Documents for achieving Substantial Completion of the Work.
- I. "Contractor" means the person or entity who has agreed with Owner to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- J. "Day(s)" unless otherwise specified shall mean calendar day(s).
- K. "Drawings" are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location, and dimensions of the Work, and may include plans,

elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.

- L. "Final Acceptance" means the written acceptance issued to Contractor by Owner after Contractor has completed the requirements of the Contract Documents, as more fully set forth in Section 6.09 B.
- M. "Final Completion" means that the Work is fully and finally completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, as more fully set forth in Section 6.09 A.
- N. "Force Majeure" means those acts entitling Contractor to request an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, as more fully set forth in paragraph 3.05A.
- O. "Notice" means a written notice which has been delivered in person to the individual or a member of the firm or entity or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended or, if delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, to the last business address known to the party giving notice.
- P. "Notice to Proceed" means a notice from Owner to Contractor that defines the date on which the Contract Time begins to run.
- Q. "Owner" means the Bainbridge Island Metro Park & Recreation District or its authorized representative with the authority to enter into, administer, and/or terminate the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and make related determinations and findings.
- R. "Person" means a corporation, partnership, business association of any kind, trust, company, or individual.
- S. "Prior Occupancy" means Owner's use of all or parts of the Project before Substantial Completion, as more fully set forth in Section 6.08 A.
- T. "Progress Schedule" means a schedule of the Work, in a form satisfactory to Owner, as further set forth in section 3.02.
- U. "Project" means the total construction of which the Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by Owner or by separate contractors.
- V. "Project Record" means the separate set of Drawings and Specifications as further set forth in paragraph 4.02A.
- W. "Schedule of Values" means a written breakdown allocating the total Contract Sum to each principle category of Work, in such detail as requested by Owner.
- X. "Specifications" are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.
- Y. "Subcontract" means a contract entered into by Subcontractor for the purpose of

obtaining supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind for or in connection with the Work.

- Z. "Subcontractor" means any person, other than Contractor, who agrees to furnish or furnishes any supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind in connection with the Work.
- AA. "Substantial Completion" means that stage in the progress of the Work when the construction is sufficiently complete, as more fully set forth in section 6.07.
- BB. "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, and includes, but is not limited to, labor, materials, supplies, equipment, services, permits, and the manufacture and fabrication of components, performed, furnished, or provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### 1.02 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

- A. Any conflict or inconsistency in the Contract Documents shall be resolved by giving the documents precedence in the following order.
  - 1. Signed Public Works Contract, including any Change Orders.
  - 2. Supplemental Conditions.
  - 3. Modifications to the General Conditions.
  - 4. General Conditions.
  - 5. Specifications--provisions in Division 1 shall take precedence over provisions of any other Division.
  - 6. Drawings--in case of conflict within the Drawings, large scale drawings shall take precedence over small scale drawings.
  - 7. Signed and Completed Bid Form.
  - 8. Instructions to Bidders.
  - 9. Advertisement for Bids.

#### 1.03 EXECUTION AND INTENT

- A. Contractor makes the following representations to Owner:
  - 1. The Contract Sum is reasonable compensation for the Work and the Contract Time is adequate for the performance of the Work, as represented by the Contract Documents;
  - 2. Contractor has carefully reviewed the Contract Documents, visited and

examined the Project site, become familiar with the local conditions in which the Work is to be performed, and satisfied itself as to the nature, location, character, quality and quantity of the Work, the labor, materials, equipment, goods, supplies, work, services and other items to be furnished and all other requirements of the Contract Documents, as well as the surface and subsurface conditions and other matters that may be encountered at the Project site or affect performance of the Work or the cost or difficulty thereof;

- 3. Contractor is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature, and possesses sufficient working capital to complete the Work and perform Contractor's obligations required by the Contract Documents; and
- 4. Contractor is able to furnish the plant, tools, materials, supplies, equipment and labor required to complete the Work and perform the obligations required by the Contract Documents and has sufficient experience and competence to do so.

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 02 00**

#### **INSURANCE AND BONDS**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 CONTRACTORS LIABILITY INSURANCE

- A. The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.
- B. <u>No Limitation</u>. Contractor's maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Contractor to the coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the District's recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity.
  - 1. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Contractor shall obtain insurance of the types described below:
    - a. <u>Automobile Liability</u> insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.
    - b. <u>Commercial General Liability</u> insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 or the equivalent and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed operations, stop gap liability, personal injury and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an insured contract. The District shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the District.
    - c. <u>Workers' Compensation</u> coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the state of Washington.
  - 2. Minimum Amounts of Insurance. Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits:
    - a. <u>Automobile Liability</u> insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of \$2,000,000 per accident.

- b. <u>Commercial General Liability</u> insurance shall be written with limits no less than \$2,000,000 each occurrence, \$4,000,000 general aggregate and a \$4,000,000 products-completed operations aggregate limit.
- 3. Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance:
  - a. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respect the District. Any Insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the District shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
  - b. The Contractor's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.
- 4. Acceptability of Insurers.
  - a. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII.
- 5. Verification of Coverage
  - a. Contractor shall furnish the District with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Contractor before commencement of the work
- 6. Subcontractors
  - a. Contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor of every tier obtain at a minimum the same insurance coverage and limits as stated herein for the Contractor. Upon request from the District, the Contractor shall provide evidence of such insurance.

# 1.02 PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS

A. Payment and performance bonds for 100% of the Contract Award Amount, plus state sales tax, shall be furnished for the Work, using the Payment Bond and Performance Bond form published and available from the American Institute of Architects (AIA) – form A312. Prior to execution of a Change Order that, cumulatively with previous Change Orders, increases the Contract Award Amount by 15% or more, the Contractor shall provide either new payment and performance bonds for the revised Contract Sum, or riders to the existing payment and performance bonds increasing

the amount of the bonds. The Contractor shall likewise provide additional bonds or riders when subsequent Change Orders increase the Contract Sum by 15% of more. No payment or performance bond is required if the Contract Sum is \$150,000 or less and Contractor agrees that Owner may, in lieu of the bond, retain a percentage of the Contract Sum for the period as allowed by RCW 39.08.010.

### 1.03 ALTERNATIVE SECURITY

- A. Contractor shall promptly furnish payment and performance bonds from an alternative surety as required to protect Owner and persons supplying labor or materials required by the Contract Documents if:
  - 1. Owner has a reasonable objection to the surety; or
  - 2. Any surety fails to furnish reports on its financial condition if requested by Owner.

### 1.04 BUILDER'S RISK

- A. Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance in the amount of the Contract Sum including all Change Orders for the Work on a replacement cost basis until Substantial Completion. The insurance shall cover the interest of Owner, Contractor, and any Subcontractors, as their interests may appear.
- B. Contractor property insurance shall be placed on an "all risk" basis and insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage and physical loss or damage including theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, false work, temporary buildings, debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any applicable legal requirements, and shall cover reasonable compensation for A/E's services and expenses required as a result of an insured loss.
- C. Owner and Contractor waive all subrogation rights against each other, any Subcontractors, A/E, A/E's subconsultants, separate contractors described in section 5.20, if any, and any of their subcontractors, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to this section or other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance held by Owner as fiduciary. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective to a person or entity even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the property damaged.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### SECTION 01 03 00

#### TIME AND SCHEDULE

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 PROGRESSION AND COMPLETION

A. Contractor shall diligently prosecute the Work, with adequate forces, achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time, and achieve Final Completion within a reasonable period thereafter.

### 1.02 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

- A. Unless otherwise provided in Division 1, Contractor shall, within 14 days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed, submit a preliminary Progress Schedule. The Progress Schedule shall show the sequence in which Contractor proposes to perform the Work, and the dates on which Contractor plans to start and finish major portions of the Work, including dates for shop drawings and other submittals, and for acquiring materials and equipment.
- B. Unless otherwise provided in Division 1, the Progress Schedule shall be in the form of a bar chart, or a critical path method analysis, as specified by Owner. The preliminary Progress Schedule may be general, showing the major portions of the Work, with a more detailed Progress Schedule submitted as directed by Owner.
- C. Owner shall return comments on the preliminary Progress Schedule to Contractor within 14 days of receipt. Review by Owner of Contractor's schedule does not constitute an approval or acceptance of Contractor's construction means, methods, or sequencing, or its ability to complete the Work within the Contract Time. Contractor shall revise and resubmit its schedule, as necessary. Owner may withhold a portion of progress payments until a Progress Schedule has been submitted which meets the requirements of this section.
- D. Contractor shall utilize and comply with the Progress Schedule. On a monthly basis, or as otherwise directed by Owner, Contractor shall submit an updated Progress Schedule at its own expense to Owner indicating actual progress. If, in the opinion of Owner, Contractor is not in conformance with the Progress Schedule for reasons other than acts of Force Majeure as identified in section 3.05, Contractor shall take such steps as are necessary to bring the actual completion dates of its work activities into conformance with the Progress Schedule, or revise the Progress Schedule to reconcile with the actual progress of the Work.
- E. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner in writing of any actual or anticipated event which is delaying or could delay achievement of any milestone or performance of any critical path activity of the Work. Contractor shall indicate the expected duration of the delay, the anticipated effect of the delay on the Progress Schedule, and the action

being or to be taken to correct the problem. Provision of such notice does not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete the Work within the Contract Time.

### 1.03 OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK FOR CONVENIENCE

- A. Owner may, at its sole discretion, order Contractor, in writing, to suspend all or any part of the Work for up to 90 days, or for such longer period as mutually agreed.
- B. Upon receipt of a written notice suspending the Work, Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of cost of performance directly attributable to such suspension. Within a period up to 90 days after the notice is delivered to Contractor, or within any extension of that period to which the parties shall have agreed, Owner shall either:
  - 1. Cancel the written notice suspending the Work; or
  - 2. Terminate the Work covered by the notice as provided in the termination provisions of part 9.
- C. If a written notice suspending the Work is cancelled or the period of the notice or any extension thereof expires, Contractor shall resume Work.
- D. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, or Contract Sum, or both, for increases in the time or cost of performance directly attributable to such suspension, provided Contractor complies with all requirements set forth in part 7.

### 1.04 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK FOR CAUSE

- A. If Contractor fails or refuses to perform its obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents, Owner may order Contractor, in writing, to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until satisfactory corrective action has been taken.
- B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum for any increased cost or time of performance attributable to Contractor's failure or refusal to perform or from any reasonable remedial action taken by Owner based upon such failure.

### 1.05 3.05 DELAY

- A. A. Any delay in or failure of performance by Owner or Contractor, other than the payment of money, shall not constitute a default hereunder if and to the extent the cause for such delay or failure of performance was unforeseeable and beyond the control of the party ("Force Majeure"). Acts of Force Majeure include, but are not limited to:
  - 1. Acts of God or the public enemy;
  - 2. Acts or omissions of any government entity;

- 3. Fire or any other casualty for which Contractor is not responsible;
- 4. Quarantine or epidemic;
- 5. Strike or defensive lockout; 6
- 6. Unusually severe weather conditions which could not have been reasonably anticipated; and
- 7. Unusual delay in receipt of supplies or products which were ordered and expedited and for which no substitute reasonably acceptable to Owner was available.
- B. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time for changes in the time of performance directly attributable to an act of Force Majeure, provided it makes a request for equitable adjustment according to section 7.03. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum resulting from an act of Force Majeure.
- C. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Time, and may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Sum, if the cost or time of Contractor's performance is changed due to the fault or negligence of Owner, provided the Contractor makes a request according to sections 7.02 and 7.03.
- D. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Time or in the Contract Sum for any delay or failure of performance to the extent such delay or failure was caused by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible.
- E. To the extent any delay or failure of performance was concurrently caused by the Owner and Contractor, Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Time for that portion of the delay or failure of performance that was concurrently caused, provided it makes a request for equitable adjustment according to section 7.03, but shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Sum.
- F. Contractor shall make all reasonable efforts to prevent and mitigate the effects of any delay, whether occasioned by an act of Force Majeure or otherwise.

### 1.06 NOTICE TO OWNER OF LABOR DISPUTES

- A. If Contractor has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute is delaying or threatens to delay timely performance in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall immediately give notice, including all relevant information, to Owner.
- B. Contractor agrees to insert a provision in its Subcontracts and to require insertion in all sub-subcontracts, that in the event timely performance of any such contract is delayed or threatened by delay by any actual or potential labor dispute, the Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor shall immediately notify the next higher tier

Subcontractor or Contractor, as the case may be, of all relevant information concerning the dispute.

# 1.07 DAMAGES FOR FAILURE TO ACHIEVE TIMELY COMPLETION

- A. Liquidated Damages
  - 1. Timely performance and completion of the Work is essential to Owner and time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence. Owner will incur serious and substantial damages if Substantial Completion of the Work does not occur within the Contract Time. However, it would be difficult if not impossible to determine the exact amount of such damages. Therefore, liquidated damages will be set at \$500 per day. Consequently, provisions for liquidated damages are included in the Contract Documents.
  - 2. The liquidated damage amounts set forth in the Contract Documents will be assessed not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages for breach of the Contract Documents. This amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the Contractor and Owner because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the Owner would in such event sustain. This amount shall be construed as the actual amount of damages sustained by the Owner, and may be retained by the Owner and deducted from periodic payments to the Contractor.
  - 3. Assessment of liquidated damages shall not release Contractor from any further obligations or liabilities pursuant to the Contract Documents.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 04 00**

### SPECIFICATIONS, DRAWINGS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 DISCREPANCIES AND CONTRACT DOCUMENT REVIEW

- A. The intent of the Specifications and Drawings is to describe a complete Project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, transportation, permits, and supplies, and perform the Work required in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications, and other provisions of the Contract Documents.
- B. The Contract Documents are complementary. What is required by one part of the Contract Documents shall be binding as if required by all. Anything mentioned in the Specifications and not shown on the Drawings or shown on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both.
- C. Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents with each other and with information furnished by Owner. If, during the performance of the Work, Contractor finds a conflict, error, inconsistency, or omission in the Contract Documents, it shall promptly and before proceeding with the Work affected thereby, report such conflict, error, inconsistency, or omission to A/E in writing.
- D. Contractor shall do no Work without applicable Drawings, Specifications, or written modifications, or Shop Drawings where required, unless instructed to do so in writing by Owner. If Contractor performs any construction activity, and it knows or reasonably should have known that any of the Contract Documents contain a conflict, error, inconsistency, or omission, Contractor shall be responsible for the performance and shall bear the cost for its correction.
- E. Contractor shall provide any work or materials the provision of which is clearly implied and is within the scope of the Contract Documents even if the Contract Documents do not mention them specifically.
- F. Questions regarding interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents shall be referred to the A/E.

#### 1.02 PROJECT RECORD

A. Contractor shall legibly mark in ink on a separate set of the Drawings and Specifications all actual construction, including depths of foundations, horizontal and vertical locations of internal and underground utilities and appurtenances referenced to permanent visible and accessible surface improvements, field changes of dimensions and details, actual suppliers, manufacturers and trade names, models of installed equipment, and Change Order Proposals (COP). This separate set of Drawings and Specifications shall be the "Project Record."

- B. The Project Record shall be maintained on the project site throughout the construction and shall be clearly labeled "PROJECT RECORD". The Project Record shall be updated at least weekly noting all changes and shall be available to Owner at all times.
- C. Contractor shall submit the completed and finalized Project Record to A/E prior to Final Acceptance.

### 1.03 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. "Shop Drawings" means documents and other information required to be submitted to A/E by Contractor pursuant to the Contract Documents, showing in detail: the proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements; and the installation (i.e. form, fit, and attachment details) of materials and equipment. Shop Drawings include, but are not limited to, drawings, diagrams, layouts, schematics, descriptive literature, illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, samples, and similar materials furnished by Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents. For materials and equipment to be incorporated into the Work, Contractor submittal shall include the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other information concerning the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the item. When directed, Contractor shall submit all samples at its own expense. Owner may duplicate, use, and disclose Shop Drawings provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- Β. Contractor shall coordinate all Shop Drawings, and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with the Contract Documents and shall indicate its approval thereon as evidence of such coordination and review. Where required by law, Shop Drawings shall be stamped by an appropriate professional licensed by the state of Washington. Shop Drawings submitted to A/E without evidence of Contractor's approval shall be returned for resubmission. Contractor shall review, approve, and submit Shop Drawings with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of Owner or separate contractors. Contractor's submittal schedule shall allow a reasonable time for A/E review. A/E will review, approve, or take other appropriate action on the Shop Drawings. Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop Drawings until the respective submittal has been reviewed and the A/E has approved or taken other appropriate action. Owner and A/E shall respond to Shop Drawing submittals with reasonable promptness. Any Work by Contractor shall be in accordance with reviewed Shop Drawings. Submittals made by Contractor which are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned without action.
- C. Approval, or other appropriate action with regard to Shop Drawings, by Owner or A/E shall not relieve Contractor of responsibility for any errors or omissions in such Shop

Drawings, nor from responsibility for compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Unless specified in the Contract Documents, review by Owner or A/E shall not constitute an approval of the safety precautions employed by Contractor during construction or constitute an approval of Contractor's means or methods of construction. If Contractor fails to obtain approval before installation and the item or work is subsequently rejected, Contractor shall be responsible for all costs of correction.

- D. If Shop Drawings show variations from the requirements of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall describe such variations in writing, separate from the Shop Drawings, at the time it submits the Shop Drawings containing such variations. If A/E approves any such variation, an appropriate Change Order will be issued. If the variation is minor and does not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, a Change Order need not be issued; however, the modification shall be recorded upon the Project Record.
- E. Unless otherwise provided in Division I, Contractor shall submit to A/E for approval 5 copies of all Shop Drawings. Unless otherwise indicated, 3 sets of all Shop Drawings shall be retained by A/E and 2 sets shall be returned to Contractor.

### 1.04 ORGANIZATION OF SPECIFICATIONS

A. Specifications are prepared in sections which conform generally with trade practices. These sections are for Owner and Contractor convenience and shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among the Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of the Work to be performed by any trade.

### 1.05 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

- A. The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by A/E are instruments of A/E's service through which the Work to be executed by Contractor is described. Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor shall own or claim a copyright in the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by A/E, and A/E shall be deemed the author of them and will, along with any rights of Owner, retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, in addition to the copyright. All copies of these documents, except Contractor's set, shall be returned or suitably accounted for to A/E, on request, upon completion of the Work.
- B. The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the A/E, and copies thereof furnished to Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by Contractor or any Subcontractor on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of Owner and A/E. Contractor and Subcontractors are granted a limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by A/E appropriate to and for use in the execution of their Work.

- C. Contractor and all Subcontractors grant a non-exclusive license to Owner, without additional cost or royalty, to use for its own purposes (including reproduction) all Shop Drawings, together with the information and diagrams contained therein, prepared by Contractor or any Subcontractor. In providing Shop Drawings, Contractor and all Subcontractors warrant that they have authority to grant to Owner a license to use the Shop Drawings, and that such license is not in violation of any copyright or other intellectual property right. Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify Owner pursuant to the indemnity provisions in Sections 5.03 and 5.22 from any violations of copyright or other intellectual property rights arising out of Owner's use of the Shop Drawings hereunder, or to secure for Owner, at Contractor's own cost, licenses in conformity with this section.
- D. The Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by Contractor, Subcontractors of any tier, or its or their equipment or material suppliers, and copies thereof furnished to Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by Contractor or any Subcontractor of any tier, or material or equipment supplier, on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of Owner. The Contractor, Subcontractors of any tier, and material or equipment suppliers are granted a limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Shop Drawings and other submittals appropriate to and for use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

### **SECTION 01 31 00**

### NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 NONDISCRIMINATION

- A. <u>Nondiscrimination Requirement.</u> During the term of this Contract, Contractor, including any subcontractor, shall not discriminate on the bases enumerated at RCW 49.60.530(3). In addition, Contractor, including any subcontractor, shall give written notice of this nondiscrimination requirement to any labor organizations with which Contractor, or subcontractor, has a collective bargaining or other agreement.
- B. <u>Obligation to Cooperate</u>. Contractor, including any subcontractor, shall cooperate and comply with any Washington state agency investigation regarding any allegation that Contractor, including any subcontractor, has engaged in discrimination prohibited by this Contract pursuant to RCW 49.60.530(3).
- C. <u>Default.</u> Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Agency may suspend Contractor, including any subcontractor, upon notice of a failure to participate and cooperate with any state agency investigation into alleged discrimination prohibited by this Contract, pursuant to RCW 49.60.530(3). Any such suspension will remain in place until Agency receives notification that Contractor, including any subcontractor, is cooperating with the investigating state agency. In the event Contractor, or subcontractor, is determined to have engaged in discrimination identified at RCW 49.60.530(3), Agency may terminate this Contract in whole or in part, and Contractor, subcontractor, or both, may be referred for debarment as provided in RCW 39.26.200. Contractor or subcontractor may be given a reasonable time in which to cure this noncompliance, including implementing conditions consistent with any court-ordered injunctive relief or settlement agreement.
- D. <u>Remedies for Breach.</u> Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, in the event of Contract termination or suspension for engaging in discrimination, Contractor, subcontractor, or both, shall be liable for contract damages as authorized by law including, but not limited to, any cost difference between the original contract and the replacement or cover contract and all administrative costs directly related to the replacement contract, which damages are distinct from any penalties imposed under Chapter 49.60, RCW. Agency shall have the right to deduct from any monies due to Contractor or subcontractor, or that thereafter become due, an amount for damages Contractor or subcontractor will owe Agency for default under this provision.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 26 00**

#### CHANGES

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 CHANGE IN THE WORK

- A. Owner may, at any time and without notice to Contractor's surety, order additions, deletions, revisions, or other changes in the Work. These changes in the Work shall be incorporated into the Contract Documents through the execution of Change Orders. If any change in the Work ordered by Owner causes an increase or decrease in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, an equitable adjustment shall be made as provided in section 7.02 or 7.03, respectively, and such adjustment(s) shall be incorporated into a Change Order.
- B. If Owner desires to order a change in the Work, it may request a written Change Order proposal from Contractor. Contractor shall submit a Change Order proposal within 14 days of the request from Owner, or within such other period as mutually agreed. Contractor's Change Order proposal shall be full compensation for implementing the proposed change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, and including compensation for all delays in connection with such change in the Work and for any expense or inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity occasioned by the change in the Work.
- C. Upon receipt of the Change Order proposal, or a request for equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, as provided in sections 7.02 and 7.03, Owner may accept or reject the proposal, request further documentation, or negotiate acceptable terms with Contractor. Pending agreement on the terms of the Change Order, Owner may direct Contractor to proceed immediately with the Change Order Work. Contractor shall not proceed with any change in the Work until it has obtained Owner's approval. All Work done pursuant to any Owner-directed change in the Work shall be executed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- D. If Owner and Contractor reach agreement on the terms of any change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, such agreement shall be incorporated in a Change Order. The Change Order shall constitute full payment and final settlement of all claims for time and for direct, indirect, and consequential costs, including costs of delays, inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity, related to any Work either covered or affected by the Change Order, or related to the events giving rise to the request for equitable adjustment.
- E. If Owner and Contractor are unable to reach agreement on the terms of any change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, Contractor may at any time in writing, request a final offer from Owner. Owner shall provide Contractor with its written response within 30 days of Contractor's request.

Owner may also provide Contractor with a final offer at any time. If Contractor rejects Owner's final offer, or the parties are otherwise unable to reach agreement, Contractor's only remedy shall be to file a Claim as provided in part 8.

- F. Owner may direct Contractor to proceed with a change in the Work through a written Field Authorization (also referred to as a Field Order) when the time required to price and execute a Change Order would impact the Project.
  - 1. The Field Authorization shall describe and include the following:
    - a. The scope of work.
    - b. An agreed upon maximum not-to-exceed amount.
    - c. Any estimated change to the Contract Time.
    - d. The method of final cost determination in accordance with the requirements of Part 7 of the General Conditions.
    - e. The supporting cost data to be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Part 7 of the General Conditions.
    - f. Upon satisfactory submittal by Contractor and approval by Owner of supporting cost data, a Change Order will be executed. Owner will not make payment to Contractor for Field Authorization work until that work has been incorporated into an executed Change Order.

### 1.02 CHANGE IN CONTRACT SUM

- A. General Application
  - 1. The Contract Sum shall only be changed by a Change Order. Contractor shall include any request for a change in the Contract Sum in its Change Order proposal.
  - 2. If the cost of Contractor's performance is changed due to the fault or negligence of Owner, or anyone for whose acts Owner is responsible, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum in accordance with the following procedure. No change in the Contract Sum shall be allowed to the extent: Contractor's changed cost of performance is due to the fault or negligence of Contractor, or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible; the change is concurrently caused by Contractor and Owner; or the change is caused by an act of Force Majeure as defined in Section 3.05.
    - a. A request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum shall be based on written notice delivered to Owner within 7 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request. For purposes of this

part, "occurrence" means when Contractor knew, or in its diligent prosecution of the Work should have known, of the event giving rise to the request. If Contractor believes it is entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum, Contractor shall immediately notify Owner and begin to keep and maintain complete, accurate, and specific daily records. Contractor shall give Owner access to any such records and, if requested shall promptly furnish copies of such records to Owner.

- b. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Sum for any occurrence of events or costs that occurred more than 7 days before Contractor's written notice to Owner. The written notice shall set forth, at a minimum, a description of: the event giving rise to the request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum; the nature of the impacts to Contractor and its Subcontractors of any tier, if any; and to the extent possible the amount of the adjustment in Contract Sum requested. Failure to properly give such written notice shall constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- Within 30 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the c. request, unless Owner agrees in writing to allow an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data, Contractor shall supplement the written notice provided in accordance with subparagraph a. above with additional supporting data. Such additional data shall include, at a minimum: the amount of compensation requested, itemized in accordance with the procedure set forth herein; specific facts, circumstances, and analysis that confirms not only that Contractor suffered the damages claimed, but that the damages claimed were actually a result of the act, event, or condition complained of and that the Contract Documents provide entitlement to an equitable adjustment to Contractor for such act, event, or condition; and documentation sufficiently detailed to permit an informed analysis of the request by Owner. When the request for compensation relates to a delay, or other change in Contract Time, Contractor shall demonstrate the impact on the critical path, in accordance with section 7.03C. Failure to provide such additional information and documentation within the time allowed or within the format required shall constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- d. Pending final resolution of any request made in accordance with this paragraph, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work.
- e. Any requests by Contractor for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum and in the Contract Time that arise out of the same event(s) shall be submitted together.

- 3. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order, or of any request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum, shall be determined by one of the following methods: a. On the basis of a fixed price as determined in paragraph 7.02B. b. By application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved as determined in paragraph 7.02C. c. On the basis of time and material as determined in paragraph 7.02D.
- 4. When Owner has requested Contractor to submit a Change Order proposal, Owner may direct Contractor as to which method in subparagraph 3. above to use when submitting its proposal. Otherwise, Contractor shall determine the value of the Work, or of a request for an equitable adjustment, on the basis of the fixed price method.
- B. Change Order Pricing -- Fixed Price
  - 1. When the fixed price method is used to determine the value of any Work covered by a Change Order, or of a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum, the following procedures shall apply:
    - a. Contractor's Change Order proposal, or request for adjustment in the Contract Sum, shall be accompanied by a complete itemization of the costs, including labor, material, subcontractor costs, and overhead and profit. The costs shall be itemized in the manner set forth below, and shall be submitted on breakdown sheets in a form approved by Owner.
    - b. All costs shall be calculated based upon appropriate industry standard methods of calculating labor, material quantities, and equipment costs.
    - c. If any of Contractor's pricing assumptions are contingent upon anticipated actions of Owner, Contractor shall clearly state them in the proposal or request for an equitable adjustment.
    - d. The cost of any additive or deductive changes in the Work shall be calculated as set forth below, except that overhead and profit shall not be included on deductive changes in the Work. Where a change in the Work involves additive and deductive work by the same Contractor or Subcontractor, small tools, overhead, profit, bond and insurance markups will apply to the net difference.
    - e. If the total cost of the change in the Work or request for equitable adjustment does not exceed \$1,000, Contractor shall not be required to submit a breakdown if the description of the change in the Work or request for equitable adjustment is sufficiently definitive for Owner to determine fair value.
    - f. If the total cost of the change in the Work or request for equitable

adjustment is between \$1,000 and \$2,500, Contractor may submit a breakdown in the following level of detail if the description of the change in the Work or if the request for equitable adjustment is sufficiently definitive to permit the Owner to determine fair value:

- 1) lump sum labor;
- 2) lump sum material;
- 3) lump sum equipment usage;
- 4) overhead and profit as set forth below; and
- 5) insurance and bond costs as set forth below.
- 2. Any request for adjustment of Contract Sum based upon the fixed price method shall include only the following items:
  - a. Craft labor costs: These are the labor costs determined by multiplying the estimated or actual additional number of craft hours needed to perform the change in the Work by the hourly labor costs. Craft hours should cover direct labor, as well as indirect labor due to trade inefficiencies. The hourly costs shall be based on the following:
    - Basic wages and benefits: Hourly rates and benefits as stated on the Department of Labor and Industries approved "statement of intent to pay prevailing wages." Direct supervision shall be a reasonable percentage not to exceed 15% of the cost of direct labor. No supervision markup shall be allowed for a working supervisor's hours.
    - 2) Worker's insurance: Direct contributions to the state of Washington for industrial insurance; medical aid; and supplemental pension, by the class and rates established by the Department of Labor and Industries.
    - Federal insurance: Direct contributions required by the Federal Insurance Compensation Act; Federal Unemployment Tax Act; and the State Unemployment Compensation Act.
    - 4) Travel allowance: Travel allowance and/or subsistence, if applicable, not exceeding those allowances established by regional labor union agreements, which are itemized and identified separately.
    - 5) Safety: Cost incurred due to the Washington Industrial Safety and Health Act, which shall be a reasonable percentage not

to exceed 2% of the sum of the amounts calculated in (1), (2), and (3) above.

- b. Material costs: This is an itemization of the quantity and cost of materials needed to perform the change in the Work. Material costs shall be developed first from actual known costs, second from supplier quotations or if these are not available, from standard industry pricing guides. Material costs shall consider all available discounts. Freight costs, express charges, or special delivery charges, shall be itemized.
- c. Equipment costs: This is an itemization of the type of equipment and the estimated or actual length of time the construction equipment appropriate for the Work is or will be used on the change in the Work. Costs will be allowed for construction equipment only if used solely for the changed Work, or for additional rental costs actually incurred by the Contractor. Equipment charges shall be computed on the basis of actual invoice costs or if owned, from the current edition of one of the following sources:
  - Associated General Contractors Washington State Department of Transportation (AGC WSDOT) Equipment Rental Agreement current edition as of the Contract execution date.
  - 2) The state of Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission for trucks used on highways.
  - 3) The National Electrical Contractors Association for equipment used on electrical work.
  - 4) The Mechanical Contractors Association of America for equipment used on mechanical work. 5) The Equipment Watch Rental Rate Blue Book shall be used as a basis for establishing rental rates of equipment not listed in the above sources. The maximum rate for standby equipment shall not exceed that shown in the AGC WSDOT Equipment Rental Agreement, current edition as of the Contract execution date.
- d. Allowance for small tools, expendables & consumable supplies: Small tools consist of tools which cost \$250 or less and are normally furnished by the performing contractor. The maximum rate for small tools shall not exceed the following:
  - 1) For Contractor, 3% of direct labor costs.
  - 2) For Subcontractors, 5% of direct labor costs.

- 3) Expendables and consumable supplies directly associated with the change in Work must be itemized.
- e. Subcontractor costs: This is defined as payments Contractor makes to Subcontractors for changed Work performed by Subcontractors of any tier. The Subcontractors' cost of Work shall be calculated and itemized in the same manner as prescribed herein for Contractor.
- f. Allowance for overhead: This is defined as costs of any kind attributable to direct and indirect delay, acceleration, or impact, added to the total cost to Owner of any change in the Contract Sum but not to the cost of any change in the Contract Time for which contractor has been compensated pursuant to the conditions set forth in Section 7.03. This allowance shall compensate Contractor for all Non craft labor, temporary construction facilities, field engineering, schedule updating, as-built drawings, home office cost, B&O taxes, office engineering, estimating costs, additional overhead because of extended time, and any other cost incidental to the change in the Work. It shall be strictly limited in all cases to a reasonable amount, mutually acceptable, or if none can be agreed upon to an amount not to exceed the rates below:
  - 1) For projects where the Contract Award Amount is under \$3 million, the following shall apply:
    - a) For Contractor, for any Work actually performed by Contractor's own forces, 16% of the first \$50,000 of the cost, and 4% of the remaining cost, if any.
    - b) For each Subcontractor (including lower tier subcontractors), for any Work actually performed by its own forces, 16% of the first \$50,000 of the cost, and 4% of the remaining cost, if any.
    - c) For Contractor, for any work performed by its Subcontractor(s), 6% of the first \$50,000 of the amount due each Subcontractor, and 4% of the remaining amount if any.
    - For each Subcontractor, for any Work performed by its Subcontractor(s) of any lower tier, 4% of the first \$50,000 of the amount due the sub-Subcontractor, and 2% of the remaining amount if any.
    - e) The cost to which overhead is to be applied shall be determined in accordance with subparagraphs Section 7.02B 7a.-e.

- 2) For projects where the Contract Award Amount is equal to or exceeds \$3 million, the following shall apply:
  - a) For Contractor, for any Work actually performed by Contractor's own forces, 12% of the first \$50,000 of the cost, and 4% of the remaining cost, if any.
  - b) For each Subcontractor (including lower tier subcontractors), for any Work actually performed by its own forces, 12% of the first \$50,000 of the cost, and 4% of the remaining cost, if any.
  - c) For Contractor, for any Work performed by its Subcontractor(s), 4% of the first \$50,000 of the amount due each Subcontractor, and 2% of the remaining amount if any.
  - For each Subcontractor, for any Work performed by its Subcontractor(s) of any lower tier, 4% of the first \$50,000 of the amount due the sub-Subcontractor, and 2% of the remaining amount if any.
  - e) The cost to which overhead is to be applied shall be determined in accordance with subparagraphs Section 7.02B 7a.-e. g. Allowance for profit: This is an amount to be added to the cost of any change in contract sum, but not to the cost of change in Contract Time for which contractor has been compensated pursuant to the conditions set forth in section 7.03. It shall be limited to a reasonable amount, mutually acceptable, or if none can be agreed upon, to an amount not to exceed the rates below:
    - For Contractor or Subcontractor of any tier for work performed by their forces, 6% of the cost developed in accordance with Section 7.02 b. 7a.-e.
    - For Contractor or Subcontractor of any tier for work performed by a subcontractor of a lower tier, 4% of the Subcontractor cost developed in accordance with Section 7.02 b. 7a.-h.
  - f) Cost of change in insurance or bond premium: This is defined as:
    - I) Contractor's liability insurance: The cost of

any changes in Contractor's liability insurance arising directly from execution of the Change Order; and

- II) Public works bond: The cost of the additional premium for Contractor's bond arising directly from the changed Work.
- g) The costs of any change in insurance or bond premium shall be added after overhead and allowance for profit are calculated in accordance with subparagraph f. and g. above.
- C. Change Order Pricing -- Unit Prices
  - 1. Whenever Owner authorizes Contractor to perform Work on a unit-price basis, Owner's authorization shall clearly state:
    - a. Scope of work to be performed;
    - b. Type of reimbursement including pre-agreed rates for material quantities; and
    - c. Cost limit of reimbursement.
  - 2. Contractor shall:
    - a. Cooperate with Owner and assist in monitoring the Work being performed. As requested by Owner, Contractor shall identify workers assigned to the Change Order Work and areas in which they are working;
    - b. Leave access as appropriate for quantity measurement; and
    - c. Not exceed any cost limit(s) without Owner's prior written approval.
  - 3. 3Contractor shall submit costs in accordance with paragraph 7.02B. and satisfy the following requirements:
    - a. Unit prices shall include reimbursement for all direct and indirect costs of the Work, including overhead and profit, and bond and insurance costs; and
    - b. Quantities must be supported by field measurement statements signed by Owner.
- D. Change Order Pricing -- Time-and-Material Prices
  - 1. Whenever Owner authorizes Contractor to perform Work on a time-and-

material basis, Owner's authorization shall clearly state:

- a. Scope of Work to be performed;
- b. Type of reimbursement including pre-agreed rates, if any, for material quantities or labor; and
- c. Cost limit of reimbursement.
- 2. Contractor shall:
  - a. Cooperate with Owner and assist in monitoring the Work being performed. As requested by Owner, identify workers assigned to the Change Order Work and areas in which they are working;
  - b. Identify on daily time sheets all labor performed in accordance with this authorization. Submit copies of daily time sheets within 2 working days for Owner's review;
  - c. Leave access as appropriate for quantity measurement;
  - d. Perform all Work in accordance with this section as efficiently as possible; and
  - e. Not exceed any cost limit(s) without Owner's prior written approval.
- 3. Contractor shall submit costs in accordance with paragraph 7.02B and additional verification supported by:
  - a. Labor detailed on daily time sheets; and b. Invoices for material.

#### 1.03 CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIME

- A. The Contract Time shall only be changed by a Change Order. Contractor shall include any request for a change in the Contract Time in its Change Order proposal.
- B. If the time of Contractor's performance is changed due to an act of Force Majeure, or due to the fault or negligence of Owner or anyone for whose acts Owner is responsible, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time in accordance with the following procedure. No adjustment in the Contract Time shall be allowed to the extent Contractor's changed time of performance is due to the fault or negligence of Contractor, or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible.
  - 1. 1A request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time shall be based on written notice delivered within 7 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request. If Contractor believes it is entitled to adjustment of Contract Time, Contractor shall immediately notify Owner and begin to keep and maintain complete, accurate, and specific daily records. Contractor

shall give Owner access to any such record and if requested, shall promptly furnish copies of such record to Owner.

- 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Time for any events that occurred more than 7 days before Contractor's written notice to Owner. The written notice shall set forth, at a minimum, a description of: the event giving rise to the request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time; the nature of the impacts to Contractor and its Subcontractors of any tier, if any; and to the extent possible the amount of the adjustment in Contract Time requested. Failure to properly give such written notice shall constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- 3. Within 30 days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request, unless Owner agrees in writing to allow an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data, Contractor shall supplement the written notice provided in accordance with subparagraph 7.03B.2 with additional supporting data. Such additional data shall include, at a minimum: the amount of delay claimed, itemized in accordance with the procedure set forth herein; specific facts, circumstances, and analysis that confirms not only that Contractor suffered the delay claimed, but that the delay claimed was actually a result of the act, event, or condition complained of, and that the Contract Documents provide entitlement to an equitable adjustment in Contract Time for such act, event, or condition; and supporting documentation sufficiently detailed to permit an informed analysis of the request by Owner. Failure to provide such additional information and documentation within the time allowed or within the format required shall constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- 4. Pending final resolution of any request in accordance with this paragraph, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work.
- C. Any change in the Contract Time covered by a Change Order, or based on a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, shall be limited to the change in the critical path of Contractor's schedule attributable to the change of Work or event(s) giving rise to the request for equitable adjustment. Any Change Order proposal or request for an adjustment in the Contract Time shall demonstrate the impact on the critical path of the schedule. Contractor shall be responsible for showing clearly on the Progress Schedule that the change or event: had a specific impact on the critical path, and except in case of concurrent delay, was the sole cause of such impact; and could not have been avoided by resequencing of the Work or other reasonable alternatives.
- D. Contractor may request compensation for the cost of a change in Contract Time in accordance with this paragraph, 7.03D, subject to the following conditions:
  - 1. The change in Contract Time shall solely be caused by the fault or negligence of Owner or A/E;

- 2. Compensation under this paragraph is limited to changes in Contract Time for which Contractor is not entitled to be compensated under section 7.02;
- 3. Contractor shall follow the procedure set forth in paragraph 7.03B;
- 4. Contractor shall establish the extent of the change in Contract Time in accordance with paragraph 7.03C; and
- 5. The daily cost of any change in Contract Time shall be limited to the items below, less funds that may have been paid pursuant to a change in the Contract Sum that contributed to this change in Contract Time:
  - a. cost of nonproductive field supervision or labor extended because of the delay;
  - b. cost of weekly meetings or similar indirect activities extended because of the delay;
  - c. cost of temporary facilities or equipment rental extended because of the delay;
  - d. cost of insurance extended because of the delay;
  - e. general and administrative overhead in an amount to be agreed upon, but not to exceed 3% of Contract Sum divided by the Contract Time for each day of the delay.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

### PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 29 00**

### PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 CONTRACT SUM

A. Owner shall pay Contractor the Contract Sum for performance of the Work, in accordance with the Contract Documents.

#### 1.02 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

A. Before submitting its first Application for Payment, Contractor shall submit to Owner for approval a breakdown allocating the total Contract Sum to each principle category of work, in such detail as requested by Owner ("Schedule of Values"). The approved Schedule of Values shall include appropriate amounts for demobilization, record drawings, O&M manuals, and any other requirements for Project closeout, and shall be used by Owner as the basis for progress payments. Payment for Work shall be made only for and in accordance with those items included in the Schedule of Values.

### 1.03 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

- A. At monthly intervals at least thirty days before the 10th or 25th day of each month, unless determined otherwise by Owner, Contractor shall submit to Owner an itemized Application for Payment for Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and the approved Schedule of Values. Each application shall be supported by such substantiating data as Owner may require.
- B. By submitting an Application for Payment, Contractor is certifying that all Subcontractors have been paid, less earned retainage in accordance with RCW 60.28.010, as their interests appeared in the last preceding certificate of payment. By submitting an Application for Payment, Contractor is recertifying that the representations set forth in section 1.03 are true and correct, to the best of Contractor's knowledge, as of the date of the Application for Payment.
- C. At the time it submits an Application for Payment, Contractor shall analyze and reconcile, to the satisfaction of Owner, the actual progress of the Work with the Progress Schedule.
- D. If authorized by Owner, the Application for Payment may include request for payment for material delivered to the Project site and suitably stored, or for completed preparatory work. Payment may similarly be requested for material stored off the Project site, provided Contractor complies with or furnishes satisfactory evidence of the following:

- 1. The material will be placed in a warehouse that is structurally sound, dry, lighted and suitable for the materials to be stored;
- 2. The warehouse is located within a 10-mile radius of the Project. Other locations may be utilized, if approved in writing, by Owner;
- 3. Only materials for the Project are stored within the warehouse (or a secure portion of a warehouse set aside for the Project);
- 4. Contractor furnishes Owner a certificate of insurance extending Contractor's insurance coverage for damage, fire, and theft to cover the full value of all materials stored, or in transit;
- 5. The warehouse (or secure portion thereof) is continuously under lock and key, and only Contractor's authorized personnel shall have access;
- 6. Owner shall at all times have the right of access in company of Contractor;
- 7. Contractor and its surety assume total responsibility for the stored materials; and
- 8. Contractor furnishes to Owner certified lists of materials stored, bills of lading, invoices, and other information as may be required, and shall also furnish notice to Owner when materials are moved from storage to the Project site.

### 1.04 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. Owner shall make progress payments on the 10th or 25th of each calendar month, in the manner and within the time provided in the Contract Documents, in such amounts as Owner determines are properly due, after receipt of a properly executed Application for Payment. Owner shall notify Contractor in accordance with RCW 39.76 if the Application for Payment does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- B. Owner shall retain 5% of the amount of each progress payment until 45 days after Final Acceptance and receipt of all documents required by law or the Contract Documents, including, at Owner's request, consent of surety to release of the retainage. In accordance with RCW 60.28, Contractor may request that monies reserved be retained in a fund by Owner, deposited by Owner in a bank or savings and loan, or placed in escrow with a bank or trust company to be converted into bonds and securities to be held in escrow with interest to be paid to Contractor. Owner may permit Contractor to provide an appropriate bond in lieu of the retained funds.
- C. Title to all Work and materials covered by a progress payment shall pass to Owner at the time of such payment free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and encumbrances. Passage of title shall not, however, relieve Contractor from any of its duties and responsibilities for the Work or materials, or waive any rights of Owner to

insist on full compliance by Contractor with the Contract Documents.

D. Payments due and unpaid in accordance with the Contract Documents shall bear interest as specified in RCW 39.76.

### 1.05 PAYMENTS WITHHELD

- A. Owner may withhold or, on account of subsequently discovered evidence, nullify the whole or part of any payment to such extent as may be necessary to protect Owner from loss or damage for reasons including but not limited to:
  - 1. Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents;
  - 2. Reasonable evidence that the Work required by the Contract Documents cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;
  - 3. Work by Owner to correct defective Work or complete the Work in accordance with section 5.16;
  - 4. Failure to perform in accordance with the Contract Documents; or
  - 5. Cost or liability that may occur to Owner as the result of Contractor's fault or negligent acts or omissions.
- B. In any case where part or all of a payment is going to be withheld for unsatisfactory performance, Owner shall notify Contractor in accordance with RCW 39.76.

### 1.06 RETAINAGE AND BOND CLAIM RIGHTS

A. RCW chapters 39.08 and 60.28, concerning the rights and responsibilities of Contractor and Owner with regard to the performance and payment bonds and retainage, are made a part of the Contract Documents by reference as though fully set forth herein.

### 1.07 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

A. Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work (or portion thereof designated and approved by Owner) when the construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so Owner has full and unrestricted use and benefit of the facilities (or the portion thereof designate and approved by Owner) for the use for which it is intended. All Work other than incidental corrective or punch list work shall be completed. Substantial Completion shall not have been achieved if all systems and parts are not functional, if utilities are not connected and operating normally, if all required occupancy permits have not been issued, or if the Work is not accessible by normal vehicular and pedestrian traffic routes. The date Substantial Completion is achieved shall be established in writing by Owner. Contractor may request an early date of Substantial Completion which must be approved by Change Order. Owner's occupancy of the Work or designated portion thereof does not

necessarily indicate that Substantial Completion has been achieved.

### 1.08 PRIOR OCCUPANCY

- A. Owner may, upon written notice thereof to Contractor, take possession of or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work ("Prior Occupancy") at any time prior to Substantial Completion. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Prior Occupancy shall not: be deemed an acceptance of any portion of the Work; accelerate the time for any payment to Contractor; prejudice any rights of Owner provided by any insurance, bond, guaranty, or the Contract Documents; relieve Contractor of the risk of loss or any of the obligations established by the Contract Documents; establish a date for termination or partial termination of the assessment of liquidated damages; or constitute a waiver of claims.
- B. Notwithstanding anything in the preceding paragraph, Owner shall be responsible for loss of or damage to the Work resulting from Prior Occupancy. Contractor's one year duty to repair and any system warranties shall begin on building systems activated and used by Owner as agreed in writing by Owner and Contractor.

# 1.09 FINAL COMPLETION, ACCEPTANCE, AND PAYMENT

- A. Final Completion shall be achieved when the Work is fully and finally complete in accordance with the Contract Documents. The date Final Completion is achieved shall be established by Owner in writing, but in no case shall constitute Final Acceptance which is a subsequent, separate, and distinct action.
- B. Final Acceptance is the formal action of Owner acknowledging Final Completion. Prior to Final Acceptance, Contractor shall, in addition to all other requirements in the Contract Documents, submit to Owner a written notice of any outstanding disputes or claims between Contractor and any of its Subcontractors, including the amounts and other details thereof. Neither Final Acceptance, nor final payment, shall release Contractor or its sureties from any obligations of these Contract Documents or the Public Works Bond, or constitute a waiver of any claims by Owner arising from Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Acceptance of final payment by Contractor, or any Subcontractor, shall constitute a waiver and release to Owner of all claims by Contractor, or any such Subcontractor, for an increase in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, and for every act or omission of Owner relating to or arising out of the Work, except for those Claims made in accordance with the procedures, including the time limits, set forth in part 8.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 30 00**

### **CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

### 1.01 CLAIMS PROCEDURE

- A. If the parties fail to reach agreement on the terms of any Change Order for Ownerdirected Work as provided in Section 7.01, or on the resolution of any request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum as provided in section 7.02 or the Contract Time as provided in section 7.03, Contractor's only remedy shall be to file a Claim with Owner as provided in this section.
- B. Contractor shall file its Claim within the earlier of: 120 days from Owner's final offer in accordance with either paragraph 7.01E or the date of Final Acceptance.
- C. The Claim shall be deemed to cover all changes in cost and time (including direct, indirect, impact, and consequential) to which Contractor may be entitled. It shall be fully substantiated and documented. At a minimum, the Claim shall contain the following information:
  - 1. A detailed factual statement of the Claim for additional compensation and time, if any, providing all necessary dates, locations, and items of Work affected by the Claim;
  - 2. The date on which facts arose which gave rise to the Claim
  - 3. The name of each employee of Owner or A/E knowledgeable about the Claim;
  - 4. The specific provisions of the Contract Documents which support the Claim;
  - 5. The identification of any documents and the substance of any oral communications that support the Claim;
  - 6. Copies of any identified documents, other than the Contract Documents, that support the Claim;
  - 7. If an adjustment in the Contract Time is sought: the specific days and dates for which it is sought; the specific reasons Contractor believes an extension in the Contract Time should be granted; and Contractor's analysis of its Progress Schedule to demonstrate the reason for the extension in Contract Time;
  - 8. If an adjustment in the Contract Sum is sought, the exact amount sought and a breakdown of that amount into the categories set forth in, and in the detail required by, section 7.02; and

- 9. A statement certifying, under penalty of perjury, that the Claim is made in good faith, that the supporting cost and pricing data are true and accurate to the best of Contractor's knowledge and belief, that the Claim is fully supported by the accompanying data, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time for which Contractor believes Owner is liable.
- D. After Contractor has submitted a fully documented Claim that complies with all applicable provisions of parts 7 and 8, Owner shall respond, in writing, to Contractor as follows:
  - 1. If the Claim amount is less than \$50,000, with a decision within 60 days from the date the Claim is received; or
  - 2. If the Claim amount is \$50,000 or more, with a decision within 60 days from the date the Claim is received, or with notice to Contractor of the date by which it will render its decision. Owner will then respond with a written decision in such additional time.
- E. To assist in the review of Contractor's Claim, Owner may visit the Project site, or request additional information, in order to fully evaluate the issues raised by the Claim. Contractor shall proceed with performance of the Work pending final resolution of any Claim. Owner's written decision as set forth above shall be final and conclusive as to all matters set forth in the Claim, unless Contractor follows the procedure set forth in section 8.02.
- F. Any Claim of the Contractor against the Owner for damages, additional compensation, or additional time, shall be conclusively deemed to have been waived by the Contractor unless timely made in accordance with the requirements of this section.

### 1.02 ARBITRATION

- A. If Contractor disagrees with Owner's decision rendered in accordance with paragraph 8.01D, Contractor shall provide Owner with a written demand for arbitration. No demand for arbitration of any such Claim shall be made later than 30 days after the date of Owner's decision on such Claim; failure to demand arbitration within said 30-day period shall result in Owner's decision being final and binding upon Contractor and its Subcontractors.
- B. Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed with the American Arbitration Association (AAA), with a copy provided to Owner. The parties shall negotiate or mediate under the Voluntary Construction Mediation Rules of the AAA, or mutually acceptable service, before seeking arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of AAA as follows:
  - 1. Disputes involving \$30,000 or less shall be conducted in accordance with the Northwest Region Expedited Commercial Arbitration Rules; or

- 2. Disputes over \$30,000 shall be conducted in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the AAA, unless the parties agree to use the expedited rules.
- C. All Claims arising out of the Work shall be resolved by arbitration. The judgment upon the arbitration award may be entered, or review of the award may occur, in the superior court having jurisdiction thereof. No independent legal action relating to or arising from the Work shall be maintained.
- D. Claims between Owner and Contractor, Contractor and its Subcontractors, Contractor and A/E, and Owner and A/E shall, upon demand by Owner, be submitted in the same arbitration or mediation.
- E. If the parties resolve the Claim prior to arbitration judgment, the terms of the resolution shall be incorporated in a Change Order. The Change Order shall constitute full payment and final settlement of the Claim, including all claims for time and for direct, indirect, or consequential costs, including costs of delays, inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity.

### 1.03 CLAIMS AUDITS

- A. All Claims filed against Owner shall be subject to audit at any time following the filing of the Claim. Failure of Contractor, or Subcontractors of any tier, to maintain and retain sufficient records to allow Owner to verify all or a portion of the Claim or to permit Owner access to the books and records of Contractor, or Subcontractors of any tier, shall constitute a waiver of the Claim and shall bar any recovery.
- B. In support of Owner audit of any Claim, Contractor shall, upon request, promptly make available to Owner the following documents:
  - 1. Daily time sheets and supervisor's daily reports;
  - 2. Collective bargaining agreements;
  - 3. Insurance, welfare, and benefits records;
  - 4. Payroll registers;
  - 5. Earnings records;
  - 6. Payroll tax forms;
  - 7. Material invoices, requisitions, and delivery confirmations;
  - 8. Material cost distribution worksheet;
  - 9. Equipment records (list of company equipment, rates, etc.);
  - 10. Vendors', rental agencies', Subcontractors', and agents' invoices;

- 11. Contracts between Contractor and each of its Subcontractors, and all lowertier Subcontractor contracts and supplier contracts;
- 12. Subcontractors' and agents' payment certificates;
- 13. Cancelled checks (payroll and vendors);
- 14. Job cost report, including monthly totals;
- 15. Job payroll ledger;
- 16. Planned resource loading schedules and summaries;
- 17. General ledger;
- 18. Cash disbursements journal;
- 19. Financial statements for all years reflecting the operations on the Work. In addition, the Owner may require, if it deems it appropriate, additional financial statements for 3 years preceding execution of the Work;
- 20. Depreciation records on all company equipment whether these records are maintained by the company involved, its accountant, or others;
- 21. If a source other than depreciation records is used to develop costs for Contractor's internal purposes in establishing the actual cost of owning and operating equipment, all such other source documents;
- 22. All nonprivileged documents which relate to each and every Claim together with all documents which support the amount of any adjustment in Contract Sum or Contract Time sought by each Claim;
- 23. Work sheets or software used to prepare the Claim establishing the cost components for items of the Claim including but not limited to labor, benefits and insurance, materials, equipment, Subcontractors, all documents which establish the time periods, individuals involved, the hours for the individuals, and the rates for the individuals; and
- 24. Work sheets, software, and all other documents used by Contractor to prepare its bid.
- C. The audit may be performed by employees of Owner or a representative of Owner. Contractor, and its Subcontractors, shall provide adequate facilities acceptable to Owner, for the audit during normal business hours. Contractor, and all Subcontractors, shall make a good faith effort to cooperate with Owner's auditors.

#### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### SECTION 01 31 00

#### TERMINATION

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CAUSE

- A. Owner may, upon 7 days written notice to Contractor and to its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of Owner) the Work, or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:
  - 1. Contractor fails to prosecute the Work or any portion thereof with sufficient diligence to ensure Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time;
  - 2. Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency;
  - 3. Contractor fails in a material way to replace or correct Work not in conformance with the Contract Documents;
  - 4. Contractor repeatedly fails to supply skilled workers or proper materials or equipment;
  - 5. Contractor repeatedly fails to make prompt payment due to Subcontractors or for labor;
  - 6. Contractor materially disregards or fails to comply with laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or
  - 7. Contractor is otherwise in material breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.
- B. Upon termination, Owner may at its option:
  - 1. Take possession of the Project site and take possession of or use all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by Contractor to maintain the orderly progress of, and to finish, the Work;
  - 2. Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to section 5.21; and
  - 3. Finish the Work by whatever other reasonable method it deems expedient.
- C. Owner's rights and duties upon termination are subject to the prior rights and duties of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- D. When Owner terminates the Work in accordance with this section, Contractor shall take the actions set forth in paragraph 9.02B, and shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is accepted.
- E. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds the cost of finishing the Work, including compensation for A/E's services and expenses made necessary thereby and any other extra costs or damages incurred by Owner in completing the Work, or as a result of Contractor's actions, such excess shall be paid to Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. These obligations for payment shall survive termination.
- F. Termination of the Work in accordance with this section shall not relieve Contractor or its surety of any responsibilities for Work performed.
- G. If Owner terminates Contractor for cause, and it is later determined that none of the circumstances set forth in paragraph 9.01A exist, then such termination shall be deemed a termination for convenience pursuant to section 9.02.

### 1.02 TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE

- A. Owner may, upon written notice, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of Owner) the Work, or any part of it, for the convenience of Owner.
- B. Unless Owner directs otherwise, after receipt of a written notice of termination for either cause or convenience, Contractor shall promptly:
  - 1. Stop performing Work on the date and as specified in the notice of termination;
  - 2. Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, equipment, services or facilities, except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the Work as is not terminated;
  - 3. Cancel all orders and subcontracts, upon terms acceptable to Owner, to the extent that they relate to the performance of Work terminated;
  - 4. Assign to Owner all of the right, title, and interest of Contractor in all orders and subcontracts;
  - 5. Take such action as may be necessary or as directed by Owner to preserve and protect the Work, Project site, and any other property related to this Project in the possession of Contractor in which Owner has an interest; and
  - 6. Continue performance only to the extent not terminated.
- C. If Owner terminates the Work or any portion thereof for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred prior to the effective date of the termination, plus a reasonable

allowance for overhead and profit on Work performed prior to termination, plus the reasonable administrative costs of the termination, but shall not be entitled to any other costs or damages, whatsoever, provided however, the sum payable upon termination shall not exceed the Contract Sum reduced by prior payments. Contractor shall be required to make its request in accordance with the provisions of part 7.

D. If Owner terminates the Work or any portion thereof for convenience, the Contract Time shall be adjusted as determined by Owner.

### PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

### PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **SECTION 01 32 00**

#### MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 GOVERNING LAW

A. The Contract Documents and the rights of the parties herein shall be governed by the laws of the state of Washington. Venue shall be in Kitsap County, unless otherwise specified.

#### 1.02 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

A. Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Neither party shall assign the Work without written consent of the other, except that Contractor may assign the Work for security purposes, to a bank or lending institution authorized to do business in the state of Washington. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations set forth in the Contract Documents.

#### 1.03 MEANING OF WORDS

A. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words which have well-known technical or construction industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. Reference to standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to the code of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall be to the latest standard specification, manual, or code in effect on the date for submission of bids, except as may be otherwise specifically stated. Wherever in these Drawings and Specifications an article, device, or piece of equipment is referred to in the singular manner, such reference shall apply to as many such articles as are shown on the drawings or required to complete the installation.

#### 1.04 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

A. No action or failure to act by Owner or A/E shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract Documents, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of an acquiescence in a breach therein, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

#### 1.05 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION

A. Pursuant to RCW 39.06, Contractor shall be registered or licensed as required by the laws of the State of Washington, including but not limited to RCW 18.27.

# 1.06 TIME COMPUTATIONS

A. When computing any period of time, the day of the event from which the period of time begins shall not be counted. The last day is counted unless it falls on a weekend or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day that is not a weekend or holiday. When the period of time allowed is less than 7 days, intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays are excluded from the computation.

# 1.07 RECORDS RETENTION

A. The wage, payroll, and cost records of Contractor, and its Subcontractors, and all records subject to audit in accordance with section 8.03, shall be retained for a period of not less than 6 years after the date of Final Acceptance.

# 1.08 THIRD-PARTY AGREEMENTS

A. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind between: A/E and Contractor; Owner and any Subcontractor; or any persons other than Owner and Contractor.

# 1.09 ANTITRUST ASSIGNMENT

A. Owner and Contractor recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are in fact usually borne by the purchaser. Therefore, Contractor hereby assigns to Owner any and all claims for such overcharges as to goods, materials, and equipment purchased in connection with the Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, except as to overcharges which result from antitrust violations commencing after the Contract Sum is established and which are not passed on to Owner under a Change Order. Contractor shall put a similar clause in its Subcontracts, and require a similar clause in its sub-Subcontracts, such that all claims for such overcharges on the Work are passed to Owner by Contractor.

# 1.10 HEADINGS AND CAPTIONS

A. All headings and captions used in these General Conditions are only for convenience of reference and shall not be used in any way in connection with the meaning, effect, interpretation, construction, or enforcement of the General Conditions, and do not define the limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of these General Conditions.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

**END OF SECTION** 

#### SECTION 01 81 00

#### PERFORMANCE

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

#### 1.01 CONTRACTOR CONTROL AND SUPERVISION

- A. Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using its best skill and attention, and shall perform the Work in a skillful manner. Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work, unless the Contract Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. Contractor shall disclose its means and methods of construction when requested by Owner.
- B. Performance of the Work shall be directly supervised by a competent superintendent who has authority to act for Contractor. The superintendent must be satisfactory to Owner and shall not be changed without the prior written consent of Owner. Owner may require Contractor to remove the superintendent from the Work or Project site, if Owner reasonable deems the superintendent incompetent, careless, or otherwise objectionable, provided Owner has first notified Contractor in writing and allowed a reasonable period for transition.
- C. Contractor shall be responsible to Owner for acts and omissions of Contractor, Subcontractors, and their employees and agents.
- D. Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among Contractor's employees and other persons performing the Work. Contractor shall not permit employment of persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them. Contractor's employees shall at all times conduct business in a manner which assures fair, equal, and nondiscriminatory treatment of all persons. Owner may, by written notice, request Contractor to remove from the Work or Project site any employee Owner reasonably deems incompetent, careless, or otherwise objectionable.
- E. Contractor shall keep on the Project site a copy of the Drawings, Specifications, addenda, reviewed Shop Drawings, and permits and permit drawings.
- F. Contractor shall ensure that its owner(s) and employees, and those of its Subcontractors, comply with the Ethics in Public Service Act RCW 42.52, which, among other things, prohibits state employees from having an economic interest in any public works contract that was made by, or supervised by, that employee. Contractor shall remove, at its sole cost and expense, any of its, or its Subcontractors', employees, if they are in violation of this act.

#### 1.02 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Owner shall pay for and

obtain all permits, and licenses required for proper execution and completion of the Work. Prior to Final Acceptance, the approved, signed permits shall be delivered to Owner.

Contractor is responsible for requesting all inspections required for proper execution and completion of the Work.

- B. If allowances for permits or utility fees are called for in the Contract Documents and set forth in Contractor's bid, and the actual costs of those permits or fees differ from the allowances in the Contract Documents, the difference shall be adjusted by Change Order.
- C. Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

#### 1.03 PATENTS AND ROYALTIES

A. Contractor is responsible for, and shall pay, all royalties and license fees. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold Owner harmless from any costs, expenses, and liabilities arising out of the infringement by Contractor of any patent, copyright, or other intellectual property right used in the Work; however, provided that Contractor gives prompt notice, Contractor shall not be responsible for such defense or indemnity when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents. If Contractor has reason to believe that use of the required design, process, or product constitutes an infringement of a patent or copyright, it shall promptly notify Owner of such potential infringement.

#### 1.04 PREVAILING WAGES

- A. Contractor shall pay the prevailing rate of wages to all workers, laborers, or mechanics employed in the performance of any part of the Work in accordance with RCW 39.12 and the rules and regulations of the Department of Labor and Industries. The schedule of prevailing wage rates for the locality or localities of the Work, is determined by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries. It is the Contractor's responsibility to verify the applicable prevailing wage rate.
- B. Before payment is made by Owner to Contractor for any work performed by Contractor and subcontractors whose work is included in the application for payment, Contractor shall submit, or shall have previously submitted to Owner for the Project, a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages, approved by the Department of Labor & Industries, certifying the rate of hourly wages paid and to be paid each classification of laborers, workers, or mechanics employed upon the Work by Contractor and tis subcontractors. Such rates of hourly wages shall not be less than the prevailing wage rate for job site, Bainbridge Island, Kitsap County, Washington.

- C. Prior to release of retainage, Contractor shall submit to Owner an Affidavit of Wages Paid, approved by the Department of Labor & Industries, for Contractor and every subcontractor, or any tier, that performed work on the Project.
- D. Disputes regarding prevailing wage rates shall be referred for arbitration to the Director of the Department of Labor and Industries. The arbitration decision shall be final and conclusive and binding on all parties involved in the dispute as provided for by RCW 39.12.060.
- E. Each Application for Payment submitted by Contractor shall state that prevailing wages have been paid in accordance with the pre-filed statement(s) of intent, as approved. Copies of the approved intent statement(s) shall be posted on the job site with the address and telephone number of the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries where a complaint or inquiry concerning prevailing wages may be made.
- F. In compliance with chapter 296-127 WAC, Contractor shall pay to the Department of Labor and Industries the currently established fee(s) for each statement of intent and/or affidavit of wages paid submitted to the Department of Labor and Industries for certification.
- G. Consistent with WAC 296-127-320, the Contractor and any subcontractor shall submit a certified copy of payroll records if requested.

# 1.05 HOURS OF LABOR

- A. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of RCW 49.28 and they are incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to that statute, no laborer, worker, or mechanic employed by Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any other person performing or contracting to do the whole or any part of the Work, shall be permitted or required to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day, provided, that in cases of extraordinary emergency, such as danger to life or property, the hours of work may be extended, but in such cases the rate of pay for time employed in excess of eight hours of each calendar day shall be not less than one and one-half times the rate allowed for this same amount of time during eight hours' service.
- B. Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, RCW 49.28 permits a contractor or subcontractor in any public works contract subject to those provisions, to enter into an agreement with its employees in which the employees work up to ten hours in a calendar day. No such agreement may provide that the employees work ten-hour days for more than four calendar days a week. Any such agreement is subject to approval by the employees. The overtime provisions of RCW 49.28 shall not apply to the hours, up to forty hours per week, worked pursuant to any such agreement.

# 1.06 NONDISCRIMINATION

A. Discrimination in all phases of employment is prohibited by, among other laws and regulations, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Vietnam Era Veterans

Readjustment Act of 1974, sections 503 and 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Equal Employment Act of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1967, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, Presidential Executive Order 11246, Executive Order 11375, the Washington State Law Against Discrimination, RCW 49.60, and Gubernatorial Executive Order 85-09. These laws and regulations establish minimum requirements for affirmative action and fair employment practices which Contractor must meet.

- B. During performance of the Work:
  - 1. Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status, or the presence of any physical, sensory, or mental disability, Vietnam era veteran status, or disabled veteran status, nor commit any other unfair practices as defined in RCW 49.60.
  - 2. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or for it, state that all qualified applicants will be considered for employment, without regard to race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status, or the presence of any physical, sensory, or mental disability.
  - 3. Contractor shall send to each labor union, employment agency, or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice advising the labor union, employment agency, or workers' representative of Contractor's obligations according to the Contract Documents and RCW 49.60.
  - 4. Contractor shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts, and to its premises by Owner, and by the Washington State Human Rights Commission, for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with this section of the Contract Documents.
  - 5. Contractor shall include the provisions of this section in every Subcontract.

# 1.07 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

- A. Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the Work.
- B. In carrying out its responsibilities according to the Contract Documents, Contractor shall protect the lives and health of employees performing the Work and other persons who may be affected by the Work; prevent damage to materials, supplies, and equipment whether on site or stored off-site; and prevent damage to other property at the site or adjacent thereto. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property or to protect them from damage, injury, or loss; shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection; and shall notify owners of adjacent property and utilities when prosecution of the Work

may affect them.

- C. Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of exposure data on all incidents relating to the Work resulting in death, traumatic injury, occupational disease, or damage to property, materials, supplies, or equipment. Contractor shall immediately report any such incident to Owner. Owner shall, at all times, have a right of access to all records of exposure.
- D. Contractor shall provide all persons working on the Project site with information and training on hazardous chemicals in their work at the time of their initial assignment, and whenever a new hazard is introduced into their work area.
  - 1. Information. At a minimum, Contractor shall inform persons working on the Project site of:
    - a. The requirements of chapter 296-62 WAC, General Occupational Health Standards;
    - b. Any operations in their work area where hazardous chemicals are present; and
    - c. The location and availability of written hazard communication programs, including the required list(s) of hazardous chemicals and material safety data sheets required by chapter 296-62 WAC.
  - 2. Training. At a minimum, Contractor shall provide training for persons working on the Project site which includes:
    - a. Methods and observations that may be used to detect the presence or release of a hazardous chemical in the work area (such as monitoring conducted by the employer, continuous monitoring devices, visual appearance or odor of hazardous chemicals when being released, etc.);
    - b. The physical and health hazards of the chemicals in the work area;
    - c. The measures such persons can take to protect themselves from these hazards, including specific procedures Contractor, or its Subcontractors, or others have implemented to protect those on the Project site from exposure to hazardous chemicals, such as appropriate work practices, emergency procedures, and personal protective equipment to be used; and
    - d. The details of the hazard communications program developed by Contractor, or its Subcontractors, including an explanation of the labeling system and the material safety data sheet, and how employees can obtain and use the appropriate hazard information.

- E. Contractor's responsibility for hazardous, toxic, or harmful substances shall include the following duties:
  - 1. Contractor shall not keep, use, dispose, transport, generate, or sell on or about the Project site, any substances now or hereafter designated as, or which are subject to regulation as, hazardous, toxic, dangerous, or harmful by any federal, state or local law, regulation, statute or ordinance (hereinafter collectively referred to as "hazardous substances", in violation of any such law, regulation, statute, or ordinance, but in no case shall any such hazardous substance be stored more than 90 days on the Project site.
  - 2. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of all spills or releases of any hazardous substances which are otherwise required to be reported to any regulatory agency and pay the cost of cleanup. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of all failures to comply with any federal, state, or local law, regulation, or ordinance; all inspections of the Project site by any regulatory entity concerning the same; all regulatory orders or fines; and all responses or interim cleanup actions taken by or proposed to be taken by any government entity or private party on the Project site.
- F. All Work shall be performed with due regard for the safety of the public. Contractor shall perform the Work so as to cause a minimum of interruption of vehicular traffic or inconvenience to pedestrians. All arrangements to care for such traffic shall be Contractor's responsibilities. All expenses involved in the maintenance of traffic by way of detours shall be borne by Contractor.
- G. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or the Work or of adjoining property, Contractor is permitted to act, at its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury, and Contractor shall so act if so authorized or instructed.
- H. Nothing provided in this section shall be construed as imposing any duty upon Owner or A/E with regard to, or as constituting any express or implied assumption of control or responsibility over, Project site safety, or over any other safety conditions relating to employees or agents of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, or the public.

# 1.08 OPERATIONS, MATERIAL HANDLING, AND STORAGE AREAS

- A. Contractor shall confine all operations, including storage of materials, to Ownerapproved areas.
- B. Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices) and utilities may be provided by Contractor only with the consent of Owner and without expense to Owner. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of Contractor and shall be removed by Contractor at its expense upon completion of the Work.
- C. Contractor shall use only established roadways or temporary roadways authorized by Owner. When materials are transported in prosecuting the Work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the

vehicle or prescribed by federal, state, or local law or regulation.

- D. Ownership and control of all materials or facility components to be demolished or removed from the Project site by Contractor shall immediately vest in Contractor upon severance of the component from the facility or severance of the material from the Project site. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all laws governing the storage and ultimate disposal. Contractor shall provide Owner with a copy of all manifests and receipts evidencing proper disposal when required by Owner or applicable law.
- E. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of its materials and equipment delivered to the Project site. Materials and equipment may be stored on the premises subject to approval of Owner. When Contractor uses any portion of the Project site as a shop, Contractor shall be responsible for any repairs, patching, or cleaning arising from such use.
- F. Contractor shall protect and be responsible for any damage or loss to the Work, or to the materials or equipment until the date of Substantial Completion, and shall repair or replace without cost to Owner any damage or loss that may occur, except damages or loss caused by the acts or omissions of Owner. Contractor shall also protect and be responsible for any damage or loss to the Work, or to the materials or equipment, after the date of Substantial Completion, and shall repair or replace without cost to Owner any such damage or loss that might occur, to the extent such damages or loss are caused by the acts or omissions of Contractor, or any Subcontractor.

# 1.09 PRIOR NOTICE OF EXCAVATION

A. "Excavation" means an operation in which earth, rock, or other material on or below the ground is moved or otherwise displaced by any means, except the tilling of soil less than 12 inches in depth for agricultural purposes, or road ditch maintenance that does not change the original road grade or ditch flow line. Before commencing any excavation, Contractor shall provide notice of the scheduled commencement of excavation to all owners of underground facilities or utilities, through locator services.

# 1.10 UNFORESEEN PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

- A. If Contractor encounters conditions at the site which are subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature which differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, then Contractor shall give written notice to Owner promptly and in no event later than 7 days after the first observance of the conditions. Conditions shall not be disturbed prior to such notice.
- B. If such conditions differ materially and cause a change in Contractor's cost of, or time

required for, performance of any part of the Work, the Contractor may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum, or both, provided it makes a request therefor as provided in part 7.

# 1.11 PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES, EQUIPMENT, VEGETATION, UTILITIES, AND IMPROVEMENTS

- A. Contractor shall protect from damage all existing structures, equipment, improvements, utilities, and vegetation: at or near the Project site; and on adjacent property of a third party, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by Contractor. Contractor shall repair any damage, including that to the property of a third party, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents or failure to exercise reasonable care in performing the Work. If Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage promptly, Owner may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to Contractor.
- B. Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so, and shall protect vegetation that will remain in place.

# 1.12 LAYOUT OF WORK

- A. Contractor shall plan and lay out the Work in advance of operations so as to coordinate all work without delay or revision.
- B. Contractor shall lay out the Work from Owner-established baselines and bench marks indicated on the Drawings, and shall be responsible for all field measurements in connection with the layout. Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all stakes, templates, platforms, equipment, tools, materials, and labor required to lay out any part of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for executing the Work to the lines and grades that may be established. Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining or restoring all stakes and other marks established.

# 1.13 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

- A. All equipment, material, and articles incorporated into the Work shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents. References in the Specifications to equipment, material, articles, or patented processes by trade name, make, or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition. Contractor may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article, or process that, in the judgment of A/E, is equal to that named in the specifications, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.
- B. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching that may be required to make its several parts fit together properly, or receive or be received by work of others set forth in, or reasonably implied by, the Contract Documents. Contractor shall not endanger any work by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering the Work and shall not cut or alter the work of any other contractor unless approved in advance by Owner.

C. Should any of the Work be found defective, or in any way not in accordance with the Contract Documents, this work, in whatever stage of completion, may be rejected by Owner.

# 1.14 AVAILABILITY AND USE OF UTILITY SERVICES

- A. Owner shall make all reasonable utilities available to Contractor from existing outlets and supplies, as specified in the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the utility service consumed shall be charged to or paid for by Contractor at prevailing rates charged to Owner or, where the utility is produced by Owner, at reasonable rates determined by Owner. Contractor will carefully conserve any utilities furnished.
- B. Contractor shall, at its expense and in a skillful manner satisfactory to Owner, install and maintain all necessary temporary connections and distribution lines, together with appropriate protective devices, and all meters required to measure the amount of each utility used for the purpose of determining charges. Prior to the date of Final Acceptance, Contractor shall remove all temporary connections, distribution lines, meters, and associated equipment and materials.

# 1.15 TESTS AND INSPECTION

- A. Contractor shall maintain an adequate testing and inspection program and perform such tests and inspections as are necessary or required to ensure that the Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be responsible for inspection and quality surveillance of all its Work and all Work performed by any Subcontractor. Unless otherwise provided, Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to Owner, or with the appropriate public authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. Contractor shall give Owner timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made. Contractor shall maintain complete inspection records and make them available to Owner.
- B. Owner may, at any reasonable time, conduct such inspections and tests as it deems necessary to ensure that the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. Owner shall promptly notify Contractor if an inspection or test reveals that the Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless the subject items are expressly accepted by Owner, such Owner inspection and tests are for the sole benefit of Owner and do not:
  - 1. Constitute or imply acceptance;
  - 2. Relieve Contractor of responsibility for providing adequate quality control measures;
  - 3. Relieve Contractor of responsibility for risk of loss or damage to the Work, materials, or equipment;

- 4. Relieve Contractor of its responsibility to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or
- 5. Impair Owner's right to reject defective or nonconforming items, or to avail itself of any other remedy to which it may be entitled.
- C. Neither observations by an inspector retained by Owner, the presence or absence of such inspector on the site, nor inspections, tests, or approvals by others, shall relieve Contractor from any requirement of the Contract Documents, nor is any such inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the Contract Documents.
- D. Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge, all facilities, labor, material and equipment reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by Owner. Owner may charge Contractor any additional cost of inspection or testing when Work is not ready at the time specified by Contractor for inspection or testing, or when prior rejection makes reinspection or retest necessary. Owner shall perform its inspections and tests in a manner that will cause no undue delay in the Work.

# 1.16 CORRECTION OF NONCONFORMING WORK

- A. If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the requirements in the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by Owner, be uncovered for Owner's observation and be replaced at the Contractor's expense and without change in the Contract Time.
- B. If, at any time prior to Final Completion, Owner desires to examine the Work, or any portion of it, which has been covered, Owner may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum for the costs of uncovering and replacement, and, if completion of the Work is thereby delayed, an adjustment in the Contract Time, provided it makes a request therefor as provided in part 7. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay the costs of examination and reconstruction.
- C. Contractor shall promptly correct Work found by Owner not to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed. Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such nonconforming Work, including additional testing and inspections.
- D. If, within one year after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof, or within one year after the date for commencement of any system warranties established under section 6.08, or within the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from Owner to do so. Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. This period of one

year shall be extended, with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion, by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual performance of the Work. Contractor's duty to correct with respect to Work repaired or replaced shall run for one year from the date of repair or replacement. Obligations under this paragraph shall survive Final Acceptance.

- E. Contractor shall remove from the Project site portions of the Work which are not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by Contractor nor accepted by Owner.
- F. If Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time after written notice to do so, Owner may replace, correct, or remove the nonconforming Work and charge the cost thereof to the Contractor.
- G. Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged Work, whether completed or partially completed, caused by Contractor's correction or removal of Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- H. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations which Contractor might have according to the Contract Documents. Establishment of the time period of one year as described in paragraph 5.16D relates only to the specific obligation of Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the Contractor's obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, including the time within which such proceedings may be commenced.
- I. If Owner prefers to accept Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum may be reduced as appropriate and equitable.

# 1.17 CLEAN UP

A. Contractor shall at all times keep the Project site, including hauling routes, infrastructures, utilities, and storage areas, free from accumulations of waste materials. Before completing the Work, Contractor shall remove from the premises its rubbish, tools, scaffolding, equipment, and materials. Upon completing the Work, Contractor shall leave the Project site in a clean, neat, and orderly condition satisfactory to Owner. If Contractor fails to clean up as provided herein, and after reasonable notice from Owner, Owner may do so and the cost thereof shall be charged to Contractor.

# 1.18 ACCESS TO WORK

A. Contractor shall provide Owner and A/E access to the Work in progress wherever located.

#### 1.19 OTHER CONTRACTS

A. Owner may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the Project site. Contractor shall reasonably cooperate with the other contractors and with Owner's employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and perform the Work in accordance with these Contract Documents to reasonably accommodate the other work.

# 1.20 SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

- A. The Contractor shall include the language of this paragraph in each of its first tier subcontract, and shall require each of its subcontractors to include the same language of this section in each of their subcontracts, adjusting only as necessary the terms used for the contracting parties. Upon request of the owner, the Contractor shall promptly provide documentation to the Owner demonstrating that the subcontractor meets the subcontractor responsibility criteria below. The requirements of this paragraph apply to all subcontractors regardless of tier. At the time of subcontract execution, the Contractor shall verify that each of its first-tier subcontractors meets the following bidder responsibility criteria:
  - 1. Have a current certificate of registration as a contractor in compliance with chapter 18.27 RCW, which must have been in effect at the time of subcontract bid submittal;
  - 2. Have a current Washington Unified Business Identifier (UBI) number;
  - 3. If applicable, have Industrial Insurance (workers' compensation) coverage for the subcontractor's employees working in Washington, as required in Title 51 RCW;
  - 4. A Washington Employment Security Department number, as required in Title 50 RCW;
  - 5. A Washington Department of Revenue state excise tax registration number, as required in Title 82 RCW;
  - 6. An electrical contractor license, if required by Chapter 19.28 RCW;
  - 7. An elevator contractor license, if required by Chapter 70.87 RCW.
  - 8. Not be disqualified from bidding any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 or 39.12.065(3).
  - 9. On a project subject to the apprenticeship utilization requirements in RCW 39.04.320, not have been found out of compliance by the Washington state apprenticeship and training council for working apprentices out of ratio, without appropriate supervision, or outside their approved work processes as outlined in their standards of apprenticeship under chapter 49.04 RCW for the one-year period immediately preceding the date of the Owner's first advertisement of the project.

- B. Before submitting the first Application for Payment, Contractor shall furnish in writing to Owner the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of all Subcontractors, as well as suppliers providing materials in excess of \$2,500. Contractor shall utilize Subcontractors and suppliers which are experienced and qualified, and meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, if any. Contractor shall not utilize any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Owner has a reasonable objection, and shall obtain Owner's written consent before making any substitutions or additions.
- C. All Subcontracts must be in writing. By appropriate written agreement, Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, so far as applicable to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which Contractor assumes toward Owner in accordance with the Contract Documents. Each Subcontract shall preserve and protect the rights of Owner in accordance with the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights. Where appropriate, Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to alter the contractual relations between Contractor and its Subcontractors with respect to insurance or bonds.
- D. Contractor shall schedule, supervise, and coordinate the operations of all Subcontractors. No Subcontracting of any of the Work shall relieve Contractor from its responsibility for the performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or any other obligations of the Contract Documents.
- E. Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is hereby assigned by Contractor to Owner provided that:
  - 1. The assignment is effective only after termination by Owner for cause pursuant to section 9.01 and only for those Subcontracts which Owner accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; and
  - 2. After the assignment is effective, Owner will assume all future duties and obligations toward the Subcontractor which Contractor assumed in the Subcontract.
  - 3. The assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.

# 1.21 WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION

- A. In addition to any special warranties provided elsewhere in the Contract Documents, Contractor warrants that all Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents and is free of any defect in equipment, material, or design furnished, or workmanship performed, by Contractor.
- B. With respect to all warranties, express or implied, for Work performed or materials

furnished according to the Contract Documents, Contractor shall:

- 1. Obtain all warranties that would be given in normal commercial practice;
- 2. Require all warranties to be executed, in writing, for the benefit of Owner;
- 3. Enforce all warranties for the benefit of Owner, if directed by Owner; and
- 4. Be responsible to enforce any subcontractor's, manufacturer's, or supplier's warranty should they extend beyond the period specified in the Contract Documents.
- C. The obligations under this section shall survive Final Acceptance.

#### 1.22 INDEMNIFICATION

- A. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold Owner and A/E harmless from and against all claims, demands, losses, damages, or costs, including but not limited to damages arising out of bodily injury or death to persons and damage to property, caused by or resulting from:
  - 1. The sole negligence of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors;
  - 2. The concurrent negligence of Contractor, or any Subcontractor, but only to the extent of the negligence of Contractor or such Subcontractor; and
  - 3. The use of any design, process, or equipment which constitutes an infringement of any United States patent presently issued, or violates any other proprietary interest, including copyright, trademark, and trade secret.
- B. In any action against Owner and any other entity indemnified in accordance with this section, by any employee of Contractor, its Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, agents, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, the indemnification obligation of this section shall not be limited by a limit on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any Subcontractor under RCW Title 51, the Industrial Insurance Act, or any other employee benefit acts. In addition, Contractor waives immunity as to Owner and A/E only, in accordance with RCW Title 51.

# PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

# PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

#### **END OF SECTION**

#### SECTION

#### **SCOPE OF WORK**

#### PART 1 - GENERAL

It is the responsibility of the contract to furnish all materials, equipment, and prevailing wage labor required to complete all work in accordance with specifications and site plans at <u>Battle Point Park.</u> <u>11299 Arrow Point Drive NE, Bainbridge Island, WA 98110</u> as follows:

#### BASE BID: BATTLE POINT PARK TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS OVERLAY

1. This work consists of installing a compacted 2 inch asphalt overlay over the existing asphalt courts located at Battle Point Park. The courts are approximately 120 feet by 108 feet. See Bid Specifications for details.

Contractor shall be a company with demonstrated successful experience installing similar projects and products and having at least five (5) years of experience.

# ALTERNATIVE BID A1: BATTLE POINT PARK TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS OVERLAY WITH STONE SCREENING BASE

 This bid alternative (Alternative #1) includes the installation of 2 inches of compacted stone screenings as a base course under a compacted 2 inch asphalt overlay on the existing court's located at Battle Point Park. The courts are approximately 120 feet by 108 feet. See Bid Specifications for more details.

Contractor shall be a company with demonstrated successful experience installing similar projects and products and having at least five (5) years of experience.

# **END SECTION**

#### SECTION

#### **TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS**

# TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS ASPHALT OVERLAY

#### **Division 6 – Structures**

#### 6-02 Hot Mix Asphalt Requirements

#### 1. Slope Requirement

All excavating, filling and grading requirements and compacting work of the subbase should be performed so that the finished subgrade is 4-6" above the surrounding ground and slopes not less than 0.83% (1:120) and not more than 1% (1:100). Each court must slope on a true plane, from north to south for good drainage and water runoff.

# 6-02 (2). Perimeter Edging

#### A. Apron

The existing apron provides a 2' concrete apron around the court. This additional footage is not included in the overlay and remains an exposed concrete apron. The transition from the asphalt overlay to the concrete apron will be a tampered edge formed to a 45 degree sloped angle.

#### 6-03 Asphaltic Surface Course

#### A. General Description

A surface course of a hot plant mix having a maximum aggregate size of 3/8" and a minimum aggregate size of 1/4" should be constructed over the hot mix intermediate course to a compacted thickness of not less than 2 inches.

Suggested Mix Design:

Screen % Passing

1/21003/890-100#490#832-67#2002-10

Liquid Asphalt Bitumen: Minimum 5.5% by weight.

Aggregate Type: Crushed stone, gravel, shale, limestone, etc. Foreign materials, i.e., pyrite, clay, ferrous compounds, dirt and organic material are not acceptable.

Cure Time: When appropriate, a minimum of 14 days before application of the playing surface.

Voids Content: Efforts should be made to target air voids content to 3.5% to 7% maximum.

This hot plant mix should be spread and compacted by methods and in a manner that produces a uniform density and thickness. The finished course should not vary more than 1/8" in 10', when measured in any direction.

The area of asphalt overlay is approximately 120 feet by 108 feet.

#### **B.** Spreading and Compacting

This hot plant mix should be spread and compacted by methods and in a manner that produces a uniform density and thickness.

#### C. Surface Tolerance

The finished surface of the court should not vary more than 1/8" in 10' when measured in any direction.

# 8-01.3(1) Construction Entrance and Street Cleaning

- 1. Any material used for stabilized construction entrance shall be free of extraneous materials that may cause or contribute to track out.
- 2. Any tracked out material shall be collected and prevented from being washed or blown off the Roadway or into waters of the State, whenever required by the District.
- 3. A street sweeper shall effectively collect these materials and shall not generate fugitive dust and shall be designed and operated in compliance with applicable air quality standards.
- 4. Material collected by the street sweeper shall be disposed of in accordance with WSDOT or COBI regulations.
- 5. Street washing with water will require the concurrence of the District.

# 8-01.3(1)A Submittals

If the project requires an erosion control plan. The Contractor shall be required to maintain, and update the erosion control plan, as may be

required during the course of the Project. The erosion control plan and details included are provided solely for the establishment of basic erosion control measures and are not intended to be a complete plan.

#### 8-02 Site Restoration

# 8-02.3 Construction Requirements

# 8-02.3(1) Responsibility During Construction

- 1. Existing vegetation that is disturbed as a result of the Contractor's work including but not limited to trench excavation, retaining wall construction, material staging, truck routing, and chemical spills shall be fully restored.
- 2. Restoration work may include but is not limited to topsoil placement, reseeding, fertilizing, and mulching for grass, and replanting damaged bushes with in-kind plants.

# 8-27.1 Crack Filling

All cracks must be clean and free of any loose material, vegetation, or dirt before any crack filling application proceeds.

Cracks larger than ¼ inch in width may require further preparation with an asphalt-based filler or a proprietary crack filling system. Contractor will provide submittals for approval prior to purchasing for any product proposed in this instance.

# 8-27.2(1) Acrylic Patch Mix

Acrylic Patch Mix for use in patching cracks, holes, depressions and other surface imperfections shall be a 100% acrylic resin blended with Portland Cement and silica sand:

- 1. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 46%
- 2. Weight 8.7-8.9 lbs/gallon
- 3. Manufacturer: Court Patch Binder by California Products, Andover, MA 01810 or approved equivalent.

# 8-27.2(2) Crack Filler

Crack filler for use in filling fine cracks shall be 100% acrylic resin heavily filled with sand:

- 1. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 85%
- 2. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 15 lbs/gallon
- 3. Manufacturer: Court Patch Binder by California Products, Andover, MA 01810 or approved equivalent.

# TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS STONE SCREENINGS AND ASPHALT OVERLAY

# **Division 6 – Structures**

# 6-01Shaping, Filling, and Compaction

# A. Stone Screenings

- B. The layer of the stone screenings fill material shall be compacted to at least 95 percent of maximum density before the succeeding layer of asphalt overlay is placed. This layer is to be 2 inches in thickness after compaction.
- C. Completed fill density will be verified at the discretion of the project manager, by a proctor provided by the contractor.
- D. A level course of crushed stone or gravel screenings should be installed over the existing court base.

TENNIS/PICKLEBALL COURTS ASPHALT OVERLAY #2511 BAINBRIDGE ISLAND METRO PARK & REC DISTRICT MAY 6, 2025 **TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS** 

E. Screenings should conform to the following gradation: U.S Standard Sieve Size 3/8" No. 4 No. 100 No. 200 % Passing 100% 80-100% 10- 30% Less than 10% Screenings should be spread and thoroughly compacted to a thickness of not less than 1". The finished surface of the leveling course should not vary more than 1/4" in 10', when measured in any direction.

# 6-02 Hot Mix Asphalt Requirements

# 1. Slope Requirement

All excavating, filling and grading requirements and compacting work of the subbase should be performed so that the finished subgrade is 4-6" above the surrounding ground and slopes not less than 0.83% (1:120) and not more than 1% (1:100). Each court must slope on a true plane, from north to south for good drainage and water runoff.

# 6-02 (2). Perimeter Edging

# A. Apron

The existing apron provides a 2' concrete apron around the court. This additional footage is not included in the overlay and remains an exposed concrete apron. The transition from the asphalt overlay to the concrete apron will be a tampered edge formed to a 45 degree sloped angle at the base of the perimeter fencing.

# 6-03 Asphaltic Surface Course

#### A. General Description

A surface course of a hot plant mix having a maximum aggregate size of 3/8" and a minimum aggregate size of 1/4" should be constructed over the hot mix intermediate course to a compacted thickness of not less than 2 inches.

Suggested Mix Design:

Screen % Passing

1/21003/890-100#490#832-67#2002-10

Liquid Asphalt Bitumen: Minimum 5.5% by weight.

Aggregate Type: Crushed stone, gravel, shale, limestone, etc. Foreign materials, i.e., pyrite, clay, ferrous compounds, dirt and organic material are not acceptable.

Cure Time: When appropriate, a minimum of 14 days before application of the playing surface.

Voids Content: Efforts should be made to target air voids content to 3.5% to 7% maximum.

This hot plant mix should be spread and compacted by methods and in a manner that produces a uniform density and thickness. The finished course should not vary more than 1/8" in 10', when measured in any direction.

The area of asphalt overlay is approximately 120 feet by 108 feet.

#### **B.** Spreading and Compacting

This hot plant mix should be spread and compacted by methods and in a manner that produces a uniform density and thickness.

#### C. Surface Tolerance

The finished surface of the court should not vary more than 1/8" in 10' when measured in any direction.

# 8-01.3(1) Construction Entrance and Street Cleaning

- 6. Any material used for stabilized construction entrance shall be free of extraneous materials that may cause or contribute to track out.
- 7. Any tracked out material shall be collected and prevented from being washed or blown off the Roadway or into waters of the State, whenever required by the District.
- 8. A street sweeper shall effectively collect these materials and shall not generate fugitive dust and shall be designed and operated in compliance with applicable air quality standards.
- 9. Material collected by the street sweeper shall be disposed of in accordance with WSDOT or COBI regulations.
- 10. Street washing with water will require the concurrence of the District.

# 8-01.3(1)A Submittals

If the project requires an erosion control plan. The Contractor shall be required to maintain, and update the erosion control plan, as may be

required during the course of the Project. The erosion control plan and details included are provided solely for the establishment of basic erosion control measures and are not intended to be a complete plan.

# 8-02 Site Restoration

# 8-02.3 Construction Requirements

# 8-02.3(1) Responsibility During Construction

- 3. Existing vegetation that is disturbed as a result of the Contractor's work including but not limited to trench excavation, retaining wall construction, material staging, truck routing, and chemical spills shall be fully restored.
- 4. Restoration work may include but is not limited to topsoil placement, reseeding, fertilizing, and mulching for grass, and replanting damaged bushes with in-kind plants.

# 8-27.1 Crack Filling

All cracks must be clean and free of any loose material, vegetation, or dirt before any crack filling application proceeds.

Cracks larger than ¼ inch in width may require further preparation with an asphalt-based filler or a proprietary crack filling system. Contractor will provide submittals for approval prior to purchasing for any product proposed in this instance.

# 8-27.2(1) Acrylic Patch Mix

Acrylic Patch Mix for use in patching cracks, holes, depressions and other surface imperfections shall be a 100% acrylic resin blended with Portland Cement and silica sand:

- 4. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 46%
- 5. Weight 8.7-8.9 lbs/gallon
- 6. Manufacturer: Court Patch Binder by California Products, Andover, MA 01810 or approved equivalent.

# 8-27.2(2) Crack Filler

Crack filler for use in filling fine cracks shall be 100% acrylic resin heavily filled with sand:

- 4. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 85%
- 5. Percent solids by weight (minimum) 15 lbs/gallon
- 6. Manufacturer: Court Patch Binder by California Products, Andover, MA 01810 or approved equivalent.

# **END SECTION**